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December 12, 2016

TAMPA - HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY
BOARD MEETING
December 12, 2016 at 1:30 P. M.
1104 East Twiggs Street, First Floor Board Room
Tampa, Florida 33602

AGENDA
If any person wishes to address the Board, a sign-up sheet has been provided at the entrance of the meeting
room. Presentations must be limited to three minutes. When addressing the Board, please state your name
and address and speak clearly into the microphone. If distributing additional backup materials, please
furnish 10 copies for the Authority members and staff. Any person who decides to appeal any decision of
the Authority with respect to any matter considered at its meeting or public hearing will need a record of
the proceedings and, for such purpose, may need to hire a court reporter to ensure that a verbatim record of
the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which an appeal is to be
based.
I.

CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION and PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

II.

PUBLIC INPUT / PRESENTATIONS
A. Center for Urban Transportation Research (CUTR) - USF– Sisinnio Concas
Presentation: The Economic Impact and Benefits of the Tampa-Hillsborough
Expressway Authority: 2016 Update

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE November 14, 2016 BOARD MEETING
IV.

INFORMATIONAL / ACTION ITEMS
A. Operations & Maintenance Committee – Bennett Barrow, Chair / David May, P.E., Staff
1. Continuation of Cleaning the Underside of the REL - (Attachment)
Purpose:

To provide pressure washing and associated traffic control measures for the
completion of cleaning the underside of the REL from approximately 31st
through approximately 78th Streets (1,572,680 SF), using the contractor that
completed the first phase. As previously noted a statewide search was
completed to locate firms qualified to perform the work. Three firms were
identified and contacted. Only one firm, Finishing Systems of Florida,
provided a responsible bid that was consistent with the estimate provided by
HNTB. The bidder was the firm that washed and painted the REL during
original construction. In addition, Finishing Systems of Florida is on the
State of Florida approved vendor list and is a certified Woman-Owned
enterprise.

Funding:

Renewal and Replacement Budget: $1,446,866
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Action:

Approval of a contract with Finishing Systems to pressure wash the underside
of the REL from approximately 31st through approximately 78th Streets
(1,572,680 SF). Contract execution is subject to final review and approval
by THEA General Counsel.

2. Construction Engineering Inspection Brandon Parkway Resurfacing - (Attachment)
Purpose:

To provide Construction Engineering and Inspection (CEI) and testing for the
Brandon Parkway resurfacing. A consultant from the miscellaneous planning
and design contract was selected for this assignment. Hours and rates were
negotiated through the general consultant, HNTB, and are consistent with
similar projects in the industry.

Funding:

Renewal and Replacement Budget: $135,179

Action:

Approval of a task order with RK&K to provide Construction Engineering and
Inspection services for the Brandon Parkway resurfacing in the amounts of
$135,179.

3. Construction Engineering Inspection Meridian Avenue Project - (Attachment)
Purpose:

To provide Construction Engineering and Inspection (CEI) and testing for the
Meridian Avenue project. Project includes paving and signal installation. A
consultant from the miscellaneous planning and design contract was selected
for this assignment. Hours and rates were negotiated through the general
consultant, HNTB, and are consistent with similar projects in the industry.

Funding:

Renewal and Replacement Budget: $146,148

Action:

Approval of a task order with RK&K to provide Construction Engineering and
Inspection services for the Meridian Avenue project in the amounts of
$146,148.

4. Florida’s Centralized Customer Service System (CCSS) - Rafael Hernandez (Attachment)
Purpose:

To outsource software engineering services to support the integration of
THEA’s Tolling Operational Back-office System with the new Florida’s
CCSS.

Funding:

Capital Project Budget: $354,000

Action:

Authorize staff to issue a Task Order for the amount not to exceed $354,000
for Infotect, a SBE firm, to provide software engineering support services
under existing THEA contract No. I-01715.
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B. Planning Committee – John Garcia, Chair / Bob Frey, Staff
1. Design-Build Selmon Greenway Pocket Parks This item has been removed from the Agenda and postponed until the
January 23, 2017 Board Meeting.
2. Selmon West Extension Investment Grade Traffic & Revenue Study - (Attachment)
Purpose:

To conduct the second phase of the investment grade traffic and revenue
study (T&R Study) for the Gandy Extension and the full TampaHillsborough Expressway Authority toll system.

Funding:

Capital Project Budget: $92,467

Action:

Approval of a Task Work Order with Jacobs Engineering Group, in the
amount not to exceed $92,467, to conduct the second phase of the
investment grade traffic and revenue study (T&R Study) for the Gandy
Extension and the full Tampa-Hillsborough Expressway Authority toll
system.

3. Planning/Feasibility Study Selmon East RFP - (Attachment)
Purpose:

To provide Planning/Feasibility Study Selmon East. The purpose of this
study from east of Meridian to I-75 is to provide THEA with the evaluation
of existing and future traffic on the Reversible Express Lanes (REL) and local
lanes of the expressway in order to maximize capacity and safety.

Funding:

Project Capital Budget: $1,871,226

Action:

Approval of Task Work Order with RSH in an amount not to exceed
$1,871,226, to conduct the planning and feasibility study for Selmon East
from east of Meridian to I-75. RSH will apportion approximately 5.2% of
contract dollars to SBE(s).

C. Audit Committee – Commissioner Les Miller, Chair / Lynne Paul / Jon Stein, Rivero
Gordimer & Company
1. FY2016 Financial Statements - (Attachment)
Purpose:

To accept FY2016 audited Financial Statements

Action:

Acceptance of the Financial Statements, as audited by Rivero Gordimer &
Company, for Fiscal Year 2015-2016

V. STAFF REPORTS
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A. Operations & Maintenance (Dave May, P.E.)
B. Financial / Traffic & Revenue (Lynne Paul)
C. Communications (Sue Chrzan)
D. Toll Operations (Rafael Hernandez)
VI. EXECUTIVE REPORTS
A. Executive Director (Joe Waggoner)
1. Contracts Reporting
a. Contracts: Increases & Changes (No Report)
- Construction / Capital Improvements
- Continuing
b. Contracts: Upcoming Renewals & Expirations - (Attachment)
c. Contracts: Close-out Report - (Attachment)
B. General Counsel – (Patrick Maguire, Esq.)
C. Chair (Vincent Cassidy, Chair)
1. Upcoming Meetings - (Attachment)
 Committees as a Whole Meeting – January 9, 2017 at 1:30 p.m.
 Board Meeting – January 23, 2017 at 1:30 p.m.
VII. OLD BUSINESS
VIII. NEW BUSINESS
IX. ADJOURNMENT

II. A.
Presentation
The Economic Impact and Benefits
of the Tampa-Hillsborough Expressway Authority: 2016 Update
Center for Urban Transportation Research (CUTR)
University of South Florida
Mr. Sisinnio Concas, Ph.D.
Research Associate Professor

Minutes
October 24, 2016

DRAFT

Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority
Minutes of November 14, 2016 Board Meeting
1104 E. Twiggs Street
Tampa, FL 33602

The Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority held a public meeting at 1:30 p.m. on
November 14, 2016, at the Authority’s Transportation Management Center, 1104 E. Twiggs Street,
Tampa, Florida. The following were present:
BOARD:

STAFF:

MICHAEL BAKER:
BROAD & CASSEL:
PARSONS BRINCKERHOFF:
CITIGROUP:
HNTB CORPORATION:
JMT:
J.P. MORGAN:
MECHANIK NUCCIO – GAS WORX:
PLAYBOOK:
STIFEL:
TBARTA:
WADE TRIM:
WELLS FARGO:
OTHER:
I.

Vincent Cassidy, Chair
John Garcia, Vice-Chair
Daniel A. Alvarez, Sr., Secretary
Tampa Mayor Bob Buckhorn
Commissioner Lesley “Les” Miller
FDOT D-7 Secretary Paul Steinman
Bennett Barrow
Joe Waggoner, Patrick Maguire, Lynne Paul,
David May, Bob Frey, Sue Chrzan, Rafael
Hernandez, Debbie Northington, Max Artman,
BJ Lamb, Man Le, Shari Callahan, Donna
Obuchowski, Susan Chase, Anna Quinones,
Elizabeth Grey
Todd Potter
David Brickhouse
Abhay Thorat, Andy Greenwood, Christina Kopp
Kevin Dempsey
Alphonse Stewart, Ginny Burchan
Sara Beresheim
Nathaniel Johnson
David Mechanik
Lindsey Parks
Margaret Lezcano
Ramond Chiaramonte
John Melendez
Mike Olliff
Neil Cosentino

CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION and PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chairman Vincent Cassidy called the meeting to order at 1:30 P.M., followed by General Counsel
Maguire leading in the Invocation and recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance.
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II.

PUBLIC INPUT / PRESENTATIONS
A. Introduction – THEA Board Member, Bennett Barrow, CFP®
Chairman Cassidy welcomed THEA’s newest Board Member, Bennett Barrow, to the meeting.
Chairman Cassidy provided some background information on Mr. Barrow stating he is the
founder of Triple Crown Wealth Architects (TCWA) and Vice President of Barrow Asset
Management, a Registered Investment Advisor in Tampa, Florida. He graduated from the
University of the South (Sewanee) in 2002 and later worked in Madrid, Spain and Santiago, Chile
working as a pension reform analyst for a public policy institute. Mr. Barrow returned to work at
Barrow Investment Management and earned his certified financial planner designation from the
University of South Florida Financial Planner Program in 2011. He is on the Board of Trustees at
Berkeley Preparatory School, Board of Directors at St. Joseph’s Hospital Foundation, and
Advisory Committee for High Risk Hope.
Mr. Barrow is eager to join THEA due to their reputation as good fiscal stewards for toll dollars
and creative thinkers regarding the future of transportation.
B. Public Speaker, Mr. Neil Cosentino
Mr. Cosentino introduced himself as a retired Airforce pilot who lives in this community, and a
member of a think tank. The think tank has worked with the Gandy community many years ago
when FDOT-7 came to the community with plans to put in a dual bridge elevated road bed on the
Gandy. Mr. Cosentino worked as an engineer prior to pilot training and is familiar with
construction. Mr. Cosentino stated “he is here to say that we need four lanes, not two lanes… if
you’re gonna do it, do it right.” His request is that this program is revisited with a reanalysis
because he feels there will be a need for two elevated road beds on Gandy with a total of four
lanes.
Chairman Cassidy noted Mr. Cosentino’s comments will be taken under advisement and will
speak with management to see if we are in the same position of this issue currently.
B. Tampa Bay Area Regional Transportation Authority (TBARTA)
Year in Review Presentation – Mr. Ramond Chiaramonte, FAICP, Executive Director
Chairman Cassidy introduced Mr. Ramond Chiaramonte, Executive Director, TBARTA. Mr.
Chiaramonte provided a presentation on the “TBARTA Year in Review”. Formerly, Mr.
Chiaramonte was Assistant Director of the Planning Commission in Hillsborough County
and MPO Director and now has a regional perspective. TBARTA is the Tampa Bay Area
Regional Transportation Authority whose role is to develop and implement a regional
transportation master plan which was adopted in June 2015.
TBARTA’s goal is to support efforts to obtain federal and state funding for projects as well
as getting the right projects on the table for discussion. Mr. Chiaramonte reviewed growth
projections for the region and potential migration trends. Based on transportation needs to
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meet potential growth projections TBARTA created a list of priorities which currently
include: 1) I-275 SR 60/Memorial Interchange; 2) Gateway Expressway; 3) Howard
Frankland Bridge; 4) Tampa Bay Express-Phase I; 5) SR 54/56 Improvements; 6) Suncoast
Parkway 2; 7) TIA/People Mover Connection/Westshore Regional Multimodal Center and 8)
University Parkway/I-75 Interchange Area. These priorities were adopted at the February
2015 Board Meeting.
Mr. Chiaramonte then reviewed the commuter services provided for District 7 all of which
are trying to be expanded into the future. This brings in extra federal dollars into the area
that also helps HART and PSTA. Ridesharing impacts were reviewed including regional
fare payments and apps for ride sharing.
Lastly, next steps were reviewed to include partnering to build stronger relationships with
other transportation agencies, engage the private sector, expand the vanpooling program and
regional school commute program, and implement single regional fare cards across all
counties and Suntrails coordination.
Chairman Cassidy thanked Mr. Chiaramonte for his presentation and information. Chairman
questioned why the Selmon West Extension would not be considered a TBARTA priority?
Mr. Chiaramonte explained it is in TBARTA’s plan; however, priorities are listed to obtain
funding or compete for funding sources at the state and/or federal level. The fact that the
Gandy Project is not in competition is the reason it is not listed in the priority listing.
Chairman Cassidy then asked for clarification regarding the FDOT Plan for the Future
Express Bus and questioned if it considered busing from the City of Tampa to the Airport?
Mr. Chiaramonte explained that the express lanes provide a great opportunity for such transit
service. The Premium Transit Study begin done by HART will identify the priorities.
Mr. Waggoner referred to very early in the presentation to the maps that indicated where
people drive to and from and the numbers expected in population growth. He noted one of
the numbers seen on federal USDOT publications states that there are 4 trips made every day
for every person in the United States. Hillsborough County has 1.3 million in population
which equates to 5.2 million trips a day generated by Hillsborough County Population alone.
If growth is 500,000 people as projected in the next 15-20 years, you are talking about
another 2 million trips per day. Mr. Waggoner is currently looking at such numbers and will
bring back to the Board highlights of what that kind of demand means to our community and
to our region. This region is underserved by the existing infrastructure.
Mr. Chiaramonte agreed with Mr. Waggoner and stated highway per capita in the Region is
very low compared to most states. He cited Orlando noting they were a smaller metropolitan
area but they have more expressways than the Tampa Bay area.
Mr. Garcia questioned if there was any type of carpooling app that matches up people. Mr.
Chiaramonte noted there are some competing apps but it is a matter of getting one tailored to
schools.
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Mr. Alvarez thanked Mr. Chiaramonte for his very informative presentation. Mr. Alvarez
asked for further information regarding the Emergency Ride Home program.
Mr.
Chiaramonte explained this program in detail for Mr. Alvarez.
Mr. Alvarez questioned the University Parkway/I-75 interchange as it relates to THEA’s long
term project connecting the northern triangle in New Tampa I-75/I-275 and what is THEA’s
interaction with TBARTA? Mr. Waggoner explained THEA works through the MPO here.
THEA’s work program was published and shared with the MPO who in turn incorporates
that it into their long range transportation program. Currently the only thing in our work
program for that area is the East/West project, for which we have programmed planning and
preliminary design funds. Full coordination and information is shared which then is
consolidated to make a composite plan at that level to ensure the region is working together.
This allows TBARTA to speak as one voice.
Chairman Cassidy recognized the hard work that lay ahead of Mr. Chiaramonte and wished
him lots of luck. He looks forward to partnering any way possible and thanked him for
sharing his talents with our community.
III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 24, 2016 BOARD MEETING
Mayor Buckhorn moved for approval of the October 24, 2016 Board Meeting Minutes, seconded
by Mr. Garcia. The motion passed unanimously.
IV. INFORMATIONAL / ACTION ITEMS
A.

Executive Director – Joe Waggoner
Ratification of the Florida Department of Transportation Memorandum of
Agreement (MOA) for the Selmon West Extension Project

1.

Mr. Waggoner explained the MOA as it stands now presented to the Board for
ratification enables THEA to move forward with the project. This also puts THEA in a
good position with regard to relocation of any utilities that may be required and the
utility companies will be responsible for the cost of relocating those utilities if the
Department’s right-of-way had prior right status on it. It also provides security to the
Agency in that the access points as designed for the project will not be changed without
THEA’s consent. It does assume DOT taking ownership of the portion of the project
that is within their right-of-way upon completion. With that ownership DOT is also
responsible for maintenance and operation of that portion of the project as well.
Mayor Buckhorn made the following motion, seconded by Commissioner
Miller for ratification of the Final Memorandum of Agreement between the
Florida Department of Transportation and Tampa Hillsborough County
Expressway Authority for the Selmon West Extension Project.
B.

Operations and Maintenance Committee – Vincent Cassidy / Dave May, PE, Staff

Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority
Minutes of November 14, 2016
Page 5 of 8

1. Miscellaneous Paving Projects & Signal Installation RFQ
Mr. May stated the purpose of this item is to resurface Meridian and Brandon Parkway
and to implement the pedestrian safety recommendations as a result of the co-study
with DOT in the Channelside/Meridian area. The proposed paving projects include
mill, resurface, stripe and install traffic controllers in the existing signal cabinets as
follows: a) Brandon Feeder Roadways (Town Center Boulevard, Brandon Parkway,
Pauls Drive, Brandon Main Street and Providence Road/Lakewood Drive) in
Hillsborough County, Florida; and b) Meridian Avenue from north of Cumberland
Avenue to Twiggs Street (East Jackson Street, East Kennedy Boulevard and East
Twiggs Street) in Hillsborough County, Florida, with a total project length of
approximately 2,465 feet. Funding comes from the renewal and replacement budget
in the amount of $2.954 million. Three different vendors submitted legitimate bids
including Hubbard Construction, Ajax Paving, and Preferred Materials. It was noted
Hubbard Construction, the lowest bidder, intends to subcontract 5.21% of the contract
dollars to SBEs.
Commissioner Miller made the following motion, seconded by Mr. Garcia
for the selection of Hubbard Construction and directs staff to begin contract
negotiations.
Chairman Cassidy noted the estimated cost was initially $100,000 less and hopes
THEA will be able to find other areas to make up the difference in cost.
Mr. Alvarez questioned the inclusion of the SBE part. Mr. May explained THEA
requests vendors provide us that information as part of their bid package. This is a
process that is done with all bids so THEA can track exactly how many SBE
percentages we are getting out of these contract dollars. We strongly encourage
vendors to target at least 15% or greater depending upon the contract and situation.
There being no further questions, comments or need for clarifications the
motion passed unanimously.
2.

Dynamic Message Signs - Installation
Mr. May reviewed the next item of installation of the newly purchased Dynamic
Message Signs (DMS), previously brought before the Board at the October 24, 2016
meeting. Two proposals were received for installation. One received from Highway
Safety Devices and the other from Transcore. Funding is from the capital budget of
$822,354. Highway Safety Devices came in at $1.6 million and Transcore was
$822,354.
Mr. Garcia made the following motion, seconded by Commissioner Miller
for the selection of Transcore and directs staff to begin contract
negotiations. The contract is for an estimated maximum of 180 calendar
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days after Notice to Proceed and are required within this contract to
coordinate heavily with Daktronics regarding the delivery and the
manufacturer to maximize both parties’ efficiencies and minimize the impact
on MOT. Contract execution is subject to final review and approval by
THEA General Counsel.
Chairman Cassidy questioned if it was possible Highway Safety misunderstood the
request justifying the variance gap in quotes. Mr. May explained there were a number
of questions and not certain Highway Safety was comfortable with this particular
installation. Mr. May noted THEA is absolutely certain Transcore understands the
requirements.
There being no further questions, comments or request for clarification the
motion passed unanimously.
C.

General Counsel – Patrick Maguire
1.

Gas Worx, LLC request to extend the term of the Ground Lease Option
Agreement between it and THEA by one (1) year in exchange for the payment of
an additional Option Fee of $5,000.
General Counsel, Mr. Maguire, explained the property in question involves the old
Don Phillips site, Gas Worx at Adamo and Channelside under the expressway. Gas
Worx’s principals changed and also recently purchased the Loomis property next door.
They have not had an opportunity to determine how they will be using the property
and have asked for a one year extension for an additional $5,000 as they work towards
planning.
Mayor Buckhorn made the following motion, seconded by Mr. Garcia to
authorize THEA’s Chairman to execute extension of the Gas Worx, LLC
ground lease option agreement for one year in exchange for the payment of
an additional option fee of $5,000 to provide additional time to the applicant
to prepare development plans.
There being no questions the motion passed unanimously.

V. STAFF REPORTS
A. Operations & Maintenance (Dave May, P.E.)
Mr. May provided an update on the Selmon West Extension schedule and provided a visual
graph showing a color coded schedule. Green represented the schedule that was presented
in April or May. The update is shown in a different color (orange) to visualize. The
conceptual plans are nearing completion and currently under review. The SEIR
reevaluation is under review. It has been transmitted to the planning commissioner. The
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draft RFP to the industry is represented by a separate block and allows the industry three
weeks to comment. This comment period is reducing risk to the design build contractors
and ultimately will help with better pricing. The criteria package development is underway
and a meeting is scheduled this week to go over details line by line. Early on CEI
procurement. Everything was hinged upon getting MOA approved so that things can
progress. Of note, more than 10 meetings have been held with design build teams in the
past three or four months. In these meetings THEA has received feedback that work done
in advance in an attempt to reduce risk to the design build contractors has created a level of
excitement in the industry.
Chairman Cassidy questioned if the projected opening of this road is set for February 2020.
Mr. May confirmed this schedule is internal. A Design Build schedule has not been
determined yet. Chairman Cassidy requested clarification on Investment Grade Traffic
line item included the Bonding part of that study? Mr. May confirmed the affirmative.
B. Financial / Traffic & Revenue (Lynne Paul)
Ms. Paul reported the information provided in packet is for the first quarter of the fiscal
year. Spending is where it should be. Toll revenue looks good and we have sufficient cash
and investments to meet the needs of the Authority.
Ms. Paul reminded the Board the Audit Committee will be presenting the FY 2016
financial statements at the December 12th Board Meeting. The Audit Committee will be
presenting the FY 2017 revenue sufficiency certification at the January 23rd meeting which
is a certification where Ms. Paul and the financial revenue engineers certify that THEA will
have toll revenue sufficient to cover debt service. Attendance is essential for voting
quorum for both the December 12th meeting and the January 23rd meeting.
Toll revenue is approximately 7.5% over last year and 3.5% over projected which is
seasonally projected. Traffic is approximately 4.5% over last year.
VI. EXECUTIVE REPORTS
A. Executive Director (Joe Waggoner) –
Mr. Waggoner reiterated emphasis needed for quorum to be present in December and
January meetings for the two items Ms. Paul mentioned.
Mr. Waggoner reminded the Board the 4th Annual Florida Automated Vehicle Summit is
scheduled for November 29-30, 2016.
B. Chair (Vincent Cassidy, Vice-Chair)
1. Upcoming Meetings
•

Committees as a Whole Meeting – December 5th, 1:30 p.m.
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•
•

The Committees as a Whole Meeting scheduled for December 5, 2016 will be
cancelled as it will not be needed.
Board Meeting – December 12th, 1:30 p.m.
2017 Board Meeting Schedule
The 2017 Board meeting schedule is included in your packet and available on the
THEA website located at http://www.tampa-xway.com/board-of-directors/#

There being no further business to come before the Board, Chairman Cassidy adjourned the
meeting at 2:19 P.M.
MINUTES OF THE NOVEMBER 14, 2016 AUTHORITY BOARD MEETING
APPROVED: ______________________________
Chair: Vincent Cassidy
ATTEST:

______________________________
Secretary: Daniel Alvarez

DATED THIS _________DAY OF _________________, 2016

IV. A. 1
Continuation of Cleaning the Underside of the REL

Purpose:

To provide pressure washing and associated traffic control measures
for the completion of cleaning the underside of the REL from
approximately 31st through approximately 78th Streets (1,572,680
SF), using the contractor that completed the first phase. As
previously noted a statewide search was completed to locate firms
qualified to perform the work. Three firms were identified and
contacted. Only one firm, Finishing Systems of Florida, provided a
responsible bid that was consistent with the estimate provided by
HNTB. The bidder was the firm that washed and painted the REL
during original construction. In addition, Finishing Systems of
Florida is on the State of Florida approved vendor list and is a
certified Woman-Owned enterprise.

Funding:

Renewal and Replacement Budget: $1,446,866

Action:

Approval of a contract with Finishing Systems to pressure wash the
underside of the REL from 22nd Street east to 50th Street. Contract
execution is subject to final review and approval by THEA General
Counsel.

FINISHING SYSTEMS OF FLORIDA, INC.
160 Dog Track Road, Longwood, Florida 32750
(407') 834-6280 fax (407) 834-2631
bsoper@fi n ish inqsvstems. us
QUOTATION
TO:

Terry Opdyke
HNTB

FROM:

Brenda Soper
Project Estimator

DATE:

December 2,2016

RE:

THEA Selmon Expressway Reversible Express Lanes Structure PowerWashing
Hillsborough County, Florida

Please accept the following proposal on the above referenced project:
Pressure clean approximately 1,572,680 SF concrete barrier walls,
columns, column caps, and segmental spans along the REL from
approximately 31 "1 through approximately 78th :

$1,446,866.00

NOTES & COMMENTS
1

2
3

4.
5.

6.
7.
8.

o

10.

11.
12.
13.

FOB jobsite, labor and material included. Tax included.
As per plans and FDOT Road and Bridge 20'14.
MOT included. MOT is estimated based upon incomplete MOT plans. This estimate

could increase if MOT details are more stringent than anticípated or as currently
portrayed in incomplete set provided by HNTB.
Water and water source is included.
Concrete Coatings are one coat, one color, spray applied. Touch up is not included.
Access and Safety equipment provided.
Work area must be accessible, free of obstruction and debris.
One mobilization is included.
Bond is not included.
This quotation becomes a part of any resulting contract.
Finishing Systems of Florida is a certifÏed SSPC QP1 Certified Contractor.
Finíshing Systems of Florida is certified with the FDOT as a Bridge Painting Contractor
Finishing Systems of Florida is certified with the FDOï as a Disadvantaged Business
Enterprise (WBE).
End of Quotation

Leroy Selmon Power Washing HNTB 12.02J6

IV. A. 2
Construction Engineering Inspection Brandon Parkway Resurfacing

Purpose:

To provide Construction Engineering and Inspection (CEI) and testing
for the Brandon Parkway resurfacing. A consultant from the
miscellaneous planning and design contract was selected for this
assignment. Hours and rates were negotiated through the general
consultant, HNTB, and are consistent with similar projects in the
industry.

Funding:

Renewal and Replacement Budget: $135,179

Action:

Approval of a task order with RK&K to provide Construction
Engineering and Inspection services for the Brandon Parkway
resurfacing in the amounts of $135,179.

ffi

CEI CONSULTANT ESTIMATED STAFFING
THEA Project No.: 0-17-01616 | RFP No.: O-01616
Description: Miscellaneous Paving Projects & Signal lnstallation

Consultant RK&K

90 days plus

1

4 days

stail

B¡andon Parkway

2016
Classifi cation

PêrÊonnel

Firm

?017

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

Total
Senior Project Engineer

FelixVergara, PE

RK&K

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.¡10

66.00

Project Adm¡n/CSS

Ken Shattuck

RK&K

o.20

1.00

1.00

1.00

3,20

õ28.00

Sr, lnspector

Charles Jewett

RK&K

0.20

1.00

1.00

1.00

3.20

528.00

Sr. lnspector

TBD

RK&K

0.50

0.50

82.50

lnspector/ Engineer lntern (1)

Michael O'Brien

KCA/KCCS

Asphalt Plant

TBD

Tleffa

0.61

100.00

7.91

1304.50

0.50

0.40

0.21

2.50

2.31

2,50

Assumptions:
1. Start up and close out durations are based on construction contract being lump sum.
2. Staffing will be adjusted according to the contractors work load.
3. Although there are lane closure restrictions that limit the work to night, there may be intermittent periods of night / day
work when there is work that will not impact tratfic, such as sidewalk.

RK&K
ESTIMATED COSTS
CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING AND INSPECTION SERVICES

TIÍEA Project No.: 0-17-01616 | RFP No.: 0-01616
Employee

Classification

Firm

Personnel

Senior Project Engineer

Felix Vergar4 PE

Senior Inspector

RK&K
RK&K
RK&K

Aaphalt Plant

Tierra

Inspector

KCA/KCCS Michael O'Brien

Project Admir/CSS

Regular Time

Actual

Raw

Contract

Manhours

Hourly Rate

Salary Cost

Multiplier

f:ó.0

Ken Shattuck

52{l^0

Charles Jewett

ó 10.5

TBD

100.0

0.00

$rì2.(x)
S3u.05
$29.58
1;22.88
$22.50

$
$
$
$

5,412.00

20,090.40 275o/o
2,288.00 301.680/o

RK&K Home Direct Expense

$
$

$

18,058.59

$

Premium
Subtotal

275o/o

$

14,883.00
55,248.60
54,627.23
7,592.68

$

3.99% $

TOTAL$

Overtime (10%)

$
$

Total

$
$
902.93 $
114.40 $

$

14,883.00
55,248.60
55,530.16

7,707ß8

$

1,738.08

$

72.05

134,089.60

$

1,089.38

$

$

1,810.14
135,178.98

IV. A. 3
Construction Engineering Inspection Meridian Avenue Project
Purpose:

To provide Construction Engineering and Inspection (CEI) and testing
for the Meridian Avenue project. Project includes paving and signal
installation. A consultant from the miscellaneous planning and design
contract was selected for this assignment. Hours and rates were
negotiated through the general consultant, HNTB, and are consistent
with similar projects in the industry.

Funding:

Renewal and Replacement Budget: $146,148

Action:

Approval of a task order with RK&K to provide Construction
Engineering and Inspection services for the Meridian Avenue project
in the amounts of $146,148.

K

CEI CONSULTANT ESTIMATED STAFFING
THEA Project No.: 0-17-01616 I RFP No.: 0-01616
Description: Miscellaneous Paving Projects & Signal lnstallation

Consultant RK&K

90 days plus 30 close oul

Merídian Avenue

2016
Clasô¡fication

Personnel

F¡rm

Dcc

Jan

Feb

Mãr

Apr

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Total
Senior Project Eng¡neer

Felix Vergara, PE

RK&K

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0./t{l

66.00

Project Admin/CSS

Ken Shattuck

RKAK

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

4.00

660.00

Sr, lnspector

Charles Jewett

RK&K

1.00

1.00

0.50

0.50

3.00

495.00

Sr. lnspector

TBD

RK&K

0.50

0.50

82.50

lnspec{or/ Engineer lntern (1)

Michael O'Brien

KCA/KCCS

Asphalt Plant

TBD

Tiera

0.61

,t00.00

8.51

1403.50

0.40

0.21

3.00

2.31

1.60

1.60

Assumptions:
1. Start up and close out durations are based on construction contract being lump sum.
2. Staffing will be adjusted according to the contractors work load.
3. Although there are lane closure restrictions that limit the work to night, there may be intermittent periods of
night / day work when there is work that will not impact traffic, such as sidewalk.

RK&K
ESTIMATED COSTS
CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING AND INSPECTION SERVICES
THEA Project No.: 0-17-01616

| R"FP

No.: 0-01616

Employee

Classification

Firm

Personnel

Aaphalt Plant

RK&K
RK&K
RK&K
Tierra

Inspector

KCA/I(CCS Michael O'Brien

Senior Project Engineer
Project Admin/CSS
Senior Inspector

Felix Vergara, PE

Regular Time

Actual

Raw

Contract

Manhours

Hourlv Rate

Salary Cost

Multiplier

66.0

Ken Shattuck

óó0.0

Charles Jewett

577.5

TBD

100.0

0.00

$82.00 $

$
$2e.58 $
tì22.88 $
1f3áJ.05

$22.50

5,412.00

25,113.00 275o/o
17,082.45

2,288.00 301.68%

$

RK&K Home Direct Expense

275yo
3.99o/o

Premium
Subtotal

$
$

14,883.00
69,060.75

$
$

51,674.41
7,592.68

$

$

TOTAL$

Overtime (10%)

Total

$
$
$

$

854.12
114.40

$

$
$

14,883.00
69,060.75
52,528.53
7,707.08

$

1,899.54

$

68.16

145,110.38

$

1,036.68

$

$

1,967.70
146,147.06

IV. A. 4
Florida’s Centralized Customer Service System (CCSS)
Purpose:

To outsource software engineering services to support the integration
of THEA’s Tolling Operational Back-office System with the new
Florida’s CCSS.

Funding:

Capital Project Budget: $354,000

Action:

Authorize staff to issue a Task Order for the amount not to exceed
$354,000 for Infotect, a SBE firm, to provide software engineering
support services under existing THEA contract No. I-01715.

Infotect Design Solutions
P.O. Box 89157
Tampa, FL 33689-0402
www.infotectdesign.com

November 30, 2016
Tampa-Hillsborough Expressway Authority
Rafael Hernandez
Director of Toll Operations
1104 E. Twiggs Street
Suite 300
Tampa, FL 33602

Statement of Work
Infotect Design Solutions, Inc. (Infotect) is pleased to provide a statement of work to
Tampa-Hillsborough Expressway Authority (THEA) for:
On-site web application development services
The work tasks are detailed as:
 Miscellaneous software development and support
 Database administration
 Server administration
 Additional tasks as directed by THEA supervisory staff
Infotect will provide a resource with the following skills:
 At least 3 years of linux development experience
 At least 3 years of with Apache, PHP (LAMP) experience
 At least 3 years of MySQL database experience
 A valid driver’s license and ability for travel within the state of Florida
THEA will provide:
 All computer software and hardware tools required to execute tasks
 A suitable physical work environment
 Reimbursement within 30 days for standard travel expenses

Pricing

See Job Costing Form JCF_2016-10-25 for hourly rate details.
Travel expenses will not exceed $10,000 per year
This statement of work is subject to agreed upon terms and conditions

Infotect Design Solutions, Inc.

Confidential

Project Cost Schedule
Company Name: Tampa Hillsborough Expressway Authority
Job/Project: PHP/MySQL Project
Date: 11/21/2016
Task
On-site Web/App Developer

$

Bill Rate
86.00

Qty
4000.00

Ext. Cost
$344,000.00

Travel Expenses (subject to THEA
approval)

$

10,000.00

1.00

$10,000.00

4,001.00

$354,000.00

TOTALS

Infotect Design Solutions, Inc.

Confidential

www.infotectdesign.com
813-630-2400

IV. B. 1
Design-Build Selmon Greenway Pocket Parks

This item has been removed from the Agenda
and postponed until the January 23, 2017 Board
Meeting.

IV. B. 2
Selmon West Extension Investment Grade Traffic & Revenue Study

Purpose:

To conduct the second phase of the investment grade traffic and
revenue study (T&R Study) for the Gandy Extension and the full
Tampa-Hillsborough Expressway Authority toll system.

Funding:

Capital Project Budget: $92,467

Action:

Approval of a Task Work Order with Jacobs Engineering Group,
in the amount not to exceed $92,467, to conduct the second phase
of the investment grade traffic and revenue study (T&R Study) for
the Gandy Extension and the full Tampa-Hillsborough Expressway
Authority toll system.

Memorandum

Date

September 6, 2016

Attention

Bob Frey

From

Jacobs Engineering

Subject

Work Task 2a - THEA Investment Grade T&R Study Scope of Services

At the request of the Authority, we are pleased to provide this scope of services to conduct the second
phase of the investment grade traffic and revenue study (T&R Study) for the Gandy Extension and the
full Tampa-Hillsborough Expressway Authority (THEA) toll system. This effort builds on phase one which
is currently being completed. Phase one includes the validation and update of the TBRPM v8.1.1
regional model and a data collection effort including an origin and destination survey that supports the
more detailed analysis in this phase.
This T&R Study will forecast transactions and toll revenue for the existing Selmon Expressway and the
proposed extension of the Selmon along Gandy Boulevard. The significant history of traffic and toll
revenue on the existing Selmon Expressway of almost 40 years provides a solid base from which the
majority of revenue will be derived.
This scope of services describes the work effort to complete the T&R Study. It provides a logical
progression from data collection to final report and presentations to rating agencies. The tasks are as
follows:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.

Data Collection/Summary (Phase 1)
Assumption Development (Phase 1 - partial)
Socioeconomic Review (Phase 1 – partial)
Travel Demand and Mesoscopic Model Analysis
T&R Forecasting Models Development and Estimates
Sensitivity and Alternative Analysis
Credit Reviews – QA/QC
Documentation and Meetings

As noted above a couple of the tasks are being completed currently in Phase 1, including the data
collection and a portion of the assumption development. To provide some consistency of analysis, this
work scope will identify those tasks at a high level with the understanding they are being completed
under a different task order.
Jacobs can complete this scope of work for $92,466.50 and provide draft report by January 13, 2017.

Draft - Version 1.0

Memorandum

Data Collection/Summary
In this task being completed in Phase 1, the following are being collected and summarized for input into
the forecasting models as calibration datasets:
1. Traffic characteristics
a. Traffic volumes
b. Travel speeds
c. Trip characteristics survey
2. Transportation infrastructure
a. Roadway geometries/qualitative route characteristics
b. Future transportation improvements
These data will provide the calibration datasets for the base year of the forecasting models as well as
provide input to future year travel characteristics.
Assumption Development
The assumptions of a traffic and revenue study can be broken down into operator controlled and those
outside the control of the operator.
Those items that are controlled by the operator are what is built and how it is tolled which is defined as
toll road infrastructure and toll policy. In this task we will work with THEA to make sure we have a
complete understanding of the current and potential for these items.
Those factors affecting traffic and toll revenue that lay outside of the operator include values of time,
values of reliability, population and employment estimates and growth, roadway infrastructure that is
controlled by other agencies, and many other traffic characteristics, like trip purposes, frequencies and
the like. In addition, toll policies on non-THEA roads adjacent to the THEA system will also be defined
and taken into account for the analysis, specifically the I-4 Connector.
In this task the assumptions will be developed and documented supported by the data collection efforts.
Socioeconomic Review
A major driver of traffic growth is the growth of population and employment in the region. Population
creates trips and employment encourages them as trips are a function of a purpose such as commuting,
shopping, school, etc. The review of these metrics at a detailed level is being conducted in Phase 1,
while in this phase a higher level review of population, employment and overall economic growth will be
conducted in this task.
The growth rates of these metrics estimated by various local and national agencies will be reviewed and
it will be determined the appropriate assumptions for this analysis to provide THEA with an achievable,
defendable forecast to be presented to the rating agencies.
Draft - Version 1.0
Page 2 of 4

Memorandum

Travel Demand and Mesoscopic Model Analysis
In Phase 1 the travel demand model and mesoscopic models are being developed for both the base year
and future year. For this phase we will run multiple interim years as a function of toll policy and
roadway infrastructure that may come online between 2015 and 2040 to appropriately identify the
impact of such changes.
Further refinement of the model will occur as appropriate to accurately reflect these changes to the
roadway network. The toll diversion assignment will be refined as well to reflect our view of traffic
diversion as a function of the envisioned toll policy and previous impacts of toll adjustments.
T&R Forecasting Models Development and Estimates
The travel demand models in the previous task provide weekday traffic by vehicle class and time period.
In this task those weekday volumes will be translated to annual transactions and revenue by vehicle and
payment class by toll plaza via a traffic and revenue forecasting model (T&R Model) developed
specifically for the THEA toll road system.
The T&R Model will have the benefit of historical transactions and revenue by hour, day and month for
each existing toll plaza. These data are being obtained under a different work authorization for THEA
that provides input to the annual report. The T&R model deviates slightly from the travel demand
models as it focuses on using the existing and future demand developed by those other models and
assigns that traffic to specific toll plazas detailed to the vehicle and payment class to allow for the
calculation of toll revenue. Weekday and weekend traffic are treated separately due to the nature of
the congestion during those different days of the week. Additionally the model reviews the analysis
from a top-down approach, analysing monthly, seasonal and annual trends that allow for a full picture of
revenue production from the system, which is separated from the bottom-up approach of more
traditional travel demand models.
The incorporation of multiple model platforms in the development of traffic and toll revenue on toll
roads allows for full understanding of how, where and why the revenue is being produced on the system
and offers systematic checks to the analysis.
The results of this task are annual transaction and revenue forecasts by toll plaza, and payment and
vehicle class for the base case which reflects the most likely future concerning infrastructure, toll
policies and market driven factors such as population and employment growth.
Sensitivity and Alternative Analysis
As this analysis is to be presented to the rating agencies to secure financing, it is envisioned that
transaction and revenue forecasts for up to five alternatives will be developed. These alternatives could
be defined by changes to competing or feeding infrastructure geometries or toll policies, or potential
different future growth patterns or motorists behaviour. Through the normal course of our analysis we
will run sensitivity tests to analyse the functionality and sensitivity of the model to input changes as well.
Draft - Version 1.0
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Memorandum

Credit Reviews
In this task both detailed and general reviews will be conducted.
The data analysis, model development and traffic and revenue results are checked to make sure that the
intent of the analysis was achieved as well as simple review of the functionality of the analysis or
models. In addition the documentation is reviewed for accuracy.
Credit reviews are also conducted in this task which mirror the credit reviews conducted by rating
agencies. The technical project team, including the project manager and technical staff present the
project to both senior and junior level staff. Three credit reviews will be conducted which include the
following:
1. Credit Review #1: Project introduction, methodology, initial results;
2. Credit Review #2: Review of the draft results, draft documentation and any changes from the first
credit review; and
3. Credit Review #3: Finalization of results and documentation.
Documentation and Meetings
In this task the analysis will be documented in a draft report for the THEA staff to review. Once review is
conducted, we will provide a final report as appropriate.
We will also conduct all necessary project meetings within this task. It is envisioned that there will be
multiple meetings during the course of the analysis with the majority taking place via teleconference
and webex. We have budgeted three person trips for project meetings and rating agency meetings.
Fee
THEA Task Order #4 - Investment Grade Study
Jacobs' Cost Estimate
Management
Work Task

Employee
Billing Rate Billing Rate - Contract Discounted
Actual Rate
Multiplier
Data Collection/Summary
Assumption Development
Socioeconomic Review
Travel Demand And Meso Modeling
T&R Forecasting Models + Estimates
Sensitivity and Alternative Analysis
Credit Reviews - QA/QC
Documentation and Meetings
Total Hours
Total Labor Fee

Project
Director

Project
Manager

Rick Gobeille
$275.00
$272.25
$132.93
2.05

Terri Slack
$250.00
$247.50
$106.16
2.33

Planning and Modelling

Task Lead
Joe
Sobleskie
$225.00
$222.75
$90.87
2.45

Task Lead

Professional
Leigh Ann
White
$150.00
$148.50
$55.31
2.68

Ana Elias
$225.00
$222.75
$102.04
2.18

2

4
4
8
$2,178.00

4
4
8
$1,980.00

16
8
8
16
50
$11,137.50

24

4
28
$6,237.00

4
40

4
8
56
$8,316.00

QA/QC

Sr.
Jr.
Sr.
Jr.
Profession Profession
Professional Professional
al
al
David
Phil
Yong Zhao Eshelman Josh Pitts
Pritchard
$120.00
$190.00
$190.00
$120.00
$118.80
$188.10
$188.10
$118.80
$41.25
$72.79
$77.27
$39.95
2.88
2.58
2.43
2.97

60

4
64
$7,603.20

16
8
16
8
48
$9,028.80

4
8

16
40

40
8
16
16
92
$17,305.20

24
16
24
16
136
$16,156.80

Sr.
Professional
Suzanne
Seegmuller
$190.00
$188.10
$90.36
2.08

40
40
$7,524.00

Total

$166.70
$165.03
$55.22
2.99

0
22
52
124
96
40
124
72
530
$87,467

Estimated Out-of-pocket Expenses
Copies, Fed-Ex, Travel etc.
Total

$5,000.00
Total Fee

$92,466.50

Draft - Version 1.0
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IV. B. 3
Planning/Feasibility Study Selmon East RFP

Purpose:

To provide Planning/Feasibility Study Selmon East. The purpose of
this study from east of Meridian to I-75 is to provide THEA with the
evaluation of existing and future traffic on the Reversible Express
Lanes (REL) and local lanes of the expressway in order to maximize
capacity and safety.

Funding:

Project Capital Budget: $1,871,226

Action:

Approval of Task Work Order with RS&H in an amount not to
exceed $1,871,226, to conduct the planning and feasibility study
for Selmon East from east of Meridian to I-75. RS&H will
apportion approximately 5.2% of contract dollars to SBE(s).

PROJECT DEVELOPMENT & ENVIRONMENT
PROJECT DAÏA

ESTIMATE OF WORK EFFORT AND COST - PRIME CONSI]LTANT
Nmc of Prcj@t:

THEA

Consult.

Nmc:

Entcr

Comty:

Hillsborough

Consult.

No.

cntcr @nsultants proj. numbcr

FPN:

123456-7-89-10

Datc:

PlmingÆGibility

Study Selmon Eæt

nme of @6ultdt

12/5/2016

insct namc
StrflCl¡ssilic¡tion

Tod Sbff
Hom From

Proiect

M¡n¡ger

Chief Enginær

Senior
Engineer

$82 88

só2 87

Senior

Tr¡flic

Eng¡nær

Senior Projecl

Engineer

Scientist

Project
Plf,nner

Enginær

Phnner

Eng¡nær¡rg

Secret¡ry/Cler

Irtern

ic¡l

StrlT

l2

'SH Suúna¡y -

Public

Involvmmt

Engincqiog Analysis & Rcpofr
Envirom€ntal Analysis & Repofs

0

0

0

0

7t7

717

717

478

0

0

0

0

478

0

T^r.l qr.trgñnrc

0

s0m

Swct'Ficld Days

Nots:

L

This shcct to bc used by Primc Consultant to calculatc thc Grmd Total fæ,
each

Aver¡ge

By

Cost

By

R¡te Per

0

0

0

0

0

0

s0

#DIV/OI

0

1t7

239

717

0

0

4,780

1269,475

s56.38

42

0

0

0

0

0

42

$l,751

$41.68

260

$16 357

0

0

1t1

111

2. M¡nually entq fcc from

Sehry

s80.00

4,179
42

SH

Cl¡ssific¡tion

sub@nsultdt. Unuscd subænsultfrt rows may bc hiddcn.

b"v

Subconsultmt

$26 ì99

l8

s8 713 94

717

0

0

s20 154 8?

s0 00

s0m

a 0R2

s2a7-sa2-57

s56.59

s287,582.57

SALARY RELATED COSTS:
OVERHEAD:

t89.90%

$546,1 19.30

OPERATING MARCIN:

23.00%

$66,143.99

FCCM (Facilitics Capital Cost Moncy):

0.

EXPËNSÊS:

7.04%

t8%

$523.40
$20,245.81

SALARY RXLATED SUBTOTAL:

Swcy (Ficld - if

byPrimc)

$920,615.07
0.00

4-mmcrervdayr $

/ day

$0.00

SUBTOTAL - PRIME

$920,615.07

Sùbcônsultmt: PB

$t45.730.27

Subconsultanti HüdcstyædHanovcr

SubcoÍsultdtr PcggyMaloncAssoc
Sùb@ûsultæt: FR

Sub@Nultet:

Aløm

Sub

5

$52.090.87
$50.877.00

$96,42t.77
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

Sub@nsultet: Sub 8

$0.00

Subconsultmt: Sub 9

$0 00

Sub@nsultmt: Sub l0

$0.00
$0 00
$0.00

SUBTOTAL ESTIMATED FEE:
Optional Swicos
GRAND TOTAL ESTIMATED FEE:

$r,265,734.98
$0.00

$t,265,734.98

ESTIMATE OF WORK EFFORT AND COST - PB + FR AIEMAN
Consu¡tant Name: TBD
Consultant No.: enter consultants prcj. number

East Selmon Plann¡ng/Feas¡bility Study
H¡llsborough
TBD

Name of Project:
County:
FPN:

ståff classif¡cat¡on

Tobl Staff

ch¡ef

Hou6 From
"sH

Eng¡neer
$76 30

). Prcject General and Prcject common Tasks

l. RoadwayAnalys¡s
i. Roâdway Plans

Ch¡ef
Des¡gner

va

52

Dale:121512016
Pr¡nc¡pal
Eng¡neer

Sen¡or Prcject

Êng¡ñeer

Sen¡or
Designer

sên¡or
Engineer

s70.89

Pro¡ect
Engineer

Eng¡neer

Ma 4a

s40 09

Eng¡neer
lntern
s31

0

.1

0

0

0

0

0

0

138

138

138

138

'138

138

344

34

34

u

34

34

34
0

138

Toch

8

't

cler¡cal

Staff Glassificâl¡on l2

SH

Salary

Average

By

Cost By

Rate Per

$39.34

0

$o

#Ðlv/o!

1,380

$72,937

$52.85

34

340

$17,970

$s2.8s

0

141

$6,469

$45.88

0

0

0
1,377

0

Seniorcadd

38

141

0

0

0

0

0

14

56

71

lb. Dra¡nage Plans

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

$o

#Dtv/o1

¡. Util¡ties

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

$0

#Dtv/o!

l. Env¡ronmental Permits, Compliance & cleaÉnces

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

$o

#Dtv/ot

0

37

369

$1E,121

$49.1

285

1,900

$93,23s

$49.07

;a. D€iñage Analysis

). Stuctures - Misc. Tâsks, Dwqs, Non-Tech.
10. Structures

- Bridge Development Report

0

368
1,900

190

0

190

0

190

380

190

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

$0

#Dtv/o!

I2. Structures - Short Span Concrete Bridge

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

$0

#DIV/O!

13. Structures - Medium Span Concrete Bridge

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

$o

#Dtv/o!

14. Structures - Structural Steel Bridqe

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

$o

#Dtv/o1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

$o

#Dtv/o1

16, Structures - I\¡ovable Span

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

$0

#Dtv/o!

t7. structures - Reta¡ning Walls

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

$o

#Dtv/o!

18. Structures - Miscel¡aneous

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

$0

#DIV/O!

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

$o

#Dtv/o!

20. S¡gn¡ng & Pavement lvark¡ng Plans

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

$0

#Dtv/o!

21. s¡gnalizâtioñ Analysis

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

$o

#Dtv/o1

22. signal¡zation

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

$o

#Dtv/o1

23. Ughting Analys¡s

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

$0

#Dtv/o!

24. Ughling Plans

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

$o

#D¡V/O!

25. Landscape Architecture Analysis

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

$o

#Dtv/o!

26. Landscape Architedure Plans

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

$0

#Dtv/ot

27. Suryey (Field & Ofñce Support)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

$o

#Dlv/o1

28. Photogrammetry

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

$o

#Dtv/o!

29. Mapp¡ng

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

$o

#Dtv/o!
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This section of the Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority's ("Authority") annual report
presents our discussion and analysis of its financial performance during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2016.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Authority exceeded its liabilities and deferred
inflows at the close of the fiscal year by $261,674,700.
Change in net position for fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 totaled $47,676,590.
Construction work in progress increased by $3,731,830 from the prior year.
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCTAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of four parts; Management's Discussion and Analysis, Financial
Statements, Supplementary lnformation, and Regulatory Reports. The Financial Statements also
include notes that explain in more detail some of the information contained therein.
REQUIRED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Financial Statements of the Authority report information about the Authority using accounting
methods similar to those used by private sector companies. These statements otfer short and longterm financial information about its activities. The Statement of Net Position includes all of the
Authority's assets and liabilities and provides information about the nature and amounts of
investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to Authority creditors (liabilities). lt also
provides the basis for computing rate of return, evaluating the capital structure of the Authority and
assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the Authority. All of the current year revenues and
expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position.
This statement measures the success of the Authority's operations over the past year and can be
used to determine whether the Authority has successfully recovered all its costs through user fees
and other charges, profitability, and credit worthiness. The final required financial statement is the
Statement of Cash Flows. The primary purpose of this statement is to provide information about the
Authority's cash receipts and cash payments during the reporting period. The statement reports cash
receipts, cash payments and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing, and financing
activities and provides answers to such questions as where did cash come from, what was cash
used for, and what was the change in cash balance during the reporting period.
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided
in the basic financial statements.

ln addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain supplementary information concerning the Authority's trend data on infrastructure condition.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AUTHORITY

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Authority's assets and deferred
outflows, and liabilities and deferred inflows, with the difference between them reported as net
position. The net position, the difference between assets and liabilities, is one way to measure the
financial health or financial position.
Over time, increases or decreases in the Authority's net position is one indicator of whether its
financial health is improving or deteriorating. However, other non-financial factors should be
considered, such as economic conditions, population growth, and changing government legislation.
2
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NET POSITION
The following table summarizes the Authority's Statement of Net Position (in millions)

2016
Unrestricted current assets
Restricted current assets
Restricted assets
Cash and investments
Receivables and other
Property and equipment - net
Construction in progress

$

13.66
16.65

Dollar
Change

201 5
13.20
15.03

$

$

I

0.46
1.62
33.57
5.30

142.75
16.40

1

742.24

742.44

7.63

3.89

3.74

Total assets

939.33

894.84

44.49

Deferred outflow of resources

29.84

31.62

969.17

$ 926.46 $

$

Total assets and deferred outflou¡s

Current liabilities
Restricted current liabilities
Long-term debt
Bonds payable
Due to other governments
Settlement payable
Pension liability
Deferred inflow of resources

$

0.59
16.65

474.68
213.84
1.49
0.25

Total liabilities and deferred infloue

09.1

11.10

$

0.45
15.03

(0.20)

(1.78)

$

479.74

214.19
1.44
0.90

42.71

o.14
1.62

(5.06)
(0.3s)
(1.44)
0.59

o.71

(0.46)

707.50

712.46

(4.e6)

161 .89

7.41

39,94

13.17

154.48
46.67
12.85

261.67

214.O0

47.67

Net position

lnvested in capital assets, net of related debt

86.61

Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net position
Total liabilities, deferred infloue
and net position

$

969.17

$ 926.46 $

o.32

¿Z.Zt

As can be seen from the above table, restricted cash and investments increased $33.57 as a
result of an increase in net position of $47.67. During the year ended June 30, 2016 the
Authority had another strong operational performance with an increase of revenue of 17o/o and
the same consistent expenses from the prior year.
3
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NET POSITION - Continued

The following table summarizes the Authority's Statement of Revenues, Expenses,

and

Changes in Net Position (in millions):

2016

$

Toll revenues

80.12 $

Dollar
Change

20'15

68.21 $

11.91

Epenses
Totalepenses
Operating net income
Net non-operating

epenses

lncome before capital grants

Capital grants
lncrease in net position
Net position at beginning of year
Net position at end of year

3.77

9.93
3.39

14.28

13.32

0.58
0.38
0.96

65.84

54.89

10.95

(18.96)

(19.241

0.28

46.88

35.65

0.79

1.23

47.67

36.88

10.79

214.00

177,12

36.88

10.51

Operating expenses
General and administrative

$ 261.67 $

214.00

11.23

rc.44\

$

47.67

While the Statement of Net Position shows the change in financial position, the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, provides details as to the nature and
source of these changes. As can be seen from the above table, revenues increased
dramatically over the past year, as expected, due to the completion of construction projects
including the l-4lSelmon Connector, an upswing in the economy, and population growth of the
area, which all contributed to increased traffic for fiscal year 2016.
BUDGETARY PROCESS

The Authority's Operating Budget is recommended by the Finance and Budget Committee of
the Authority's governing board. The budget is based upon a review of current revenues and
expenditures and the projected future funding needs of the Authority for administration,
operations, maintenance, and the annual approved work program. The budget is then approved
by the Authority's governing board.

The development of the Authority's five-year work program is a combined effort between the
Executive Director and the Directors of Planning, Roadway Operations, Toll Operations and the
Chief Financial Offîcer. Annual updates to the work program will be presented to the Authority's
governing board for approval in conjunction with the annual budget.

4
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital assets consist of the following
June 30

2015 Additions

Assets subject to depreciation
Bu

ildings and improvements

$

10,525,638

$

152,188

26,729,197

Furniture and equipment

June 30 2016

$

10,677,826

670,293

27,399,490

822,481

38,1 33,935

56 6'19

56.619

Vehicle

37,311,454
Less accumulated depreciation

$

Deletions

(25,614,070)

(26,657,558)

(1,043,488)

11,697,384

(221,007)

11,476,377

25,428

730 768 705

Assets not subject to depreciation
lnfrastructure
Total property and equipment
Construction in progress

730 743 277

$742,440,661

$

$

$

3,89 3,1 67

(195,579)

3,93'1,400

$

$742,245,082

_$_Ísg!I $

7,624,997

The Authority's investment in capital assets includes buildings, improvements, furniture and
equipment añd roads. The Authority added approximately $670,000 of equipment purchases
and $152,000 of building improvements. Additionally, the Authority added approximately $g.g
million of construction in progress improvements related to the Selmon West Extension,
Connected Vehicle project and various other projects.
I

N

FRASTRUCTU RE PRESERVATION

It is the policy of the Authority that it will take all necessary actions to ensure that infrastructure
assets are maintained, repaired, renewed and, when needed, replaced, so as to last indefinitely.

Depreciation is not recorded as long as the infrastructure assets are maintained at the level
established by the Authority. Routine maintenance and renewal and replacement costs are
expensed annually. The Authority's policy is to maintain the roadway condition and a
Maintenance Rating Program (MRP) rating 90 or better. The Authority's GEC has determined
that the overall rating of the Expressway System in the Florida Department of Transportation's
Maintenance Rating Program exceeds minimum standards. For fiscal year 2016, preservation
expenses were $2,925,092.

Anticipated major renewal and replacement activities have been identified and included in the
five-year work program. A $10 million renewal and replacement reserve has been established
by the Authority.

5
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

On May 18, 2015, the governing board approved and adopted a Strategic Blueprint. This
blueprint defines the Authority's mission which is to provide safe, reliable and financially

sustainable transportation services to the Tampa Bay region while reinvesting customer based
revenue back into the community. The blueprint outlined the Authority's goals and objectives as
well as a strategy for implementation through the year 2025.
LONG TERM DEBT

December 2012, the Authority issued $334.17 million in Tampa-Hillsborough County
Expressway Authority Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2012A and 20128; $40.42 million in
Tampa-Hillðborough ôounty Expressway Authority Taxable Revenue Bonds, Series 2012C; and
$70.ì million in Támpa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority Taxable Refunding Revenue
Bonds, Series 2012D. The refunding bond issues were used to refund the remaining 2002
($23.9 mitlion) and the 2005 ($248.3 million) bonds. The bonds were issued under a new
Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority Master Bond Resolution.

ln

The Series 2012 bonds were rated A- by Standards & Poor's and A3 by Moody's lnvestor
Services. On February 4, 2014, the bonds were upgraded to a rating of A by Standards &
Poor's. Moody's upgraded the bonds to a rating of A2 on December 31,2015.
The Authority has amounts due to the Florida Department of Transportation (the "Department")
for prior payments of operation and maintenance costs of the expressway system and renewal
and replacement costs which occurred under the LPA that was terminated in December 2012;
($200,4 million). The Authority also owes the Department $13.8 million in State Transportation
Ìrust loans and interest. The Authority has agreed to repay the Department in twenty annual
payments beginning July 1,2025.

Pursuant to the Authority's Resolution #647 and Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway
Authority Master Bond Resolution, the Traffic Engineer is required to, and has, certified that
pledge funds estimated for fiscal year 2017 will be sufficient to comply with estimated bond
payments as required by the terms of the Master Resolution.
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET

Between 2007 and 2010, there was a downturn in traffic levels and vehicles miles traveled due
to the recession. Many toll facilities experienced year-on-year reductions in traffic and revenue
falling well below prior growth projects. The growth trend has turned positive and economic
activity is expected to see a return to long-term growth. Analysis by the Authority's Traffic and
Revenue Engineer shows that traffic growth on the expressway is directly related to the
population growth of west-central Florida. Hillsborough County population growth is expected to
have a strong 1% average annual growth rate from 2015 through2025. When preparing the
FY2O17 budget, population growth and its correlation to traffic was taken into consideration.
CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY'S MANAGEMENT

The financial report is designated to provide our citizens, customers, investors, and creditors
with a general overview of the Authority's finances and to demonstrate the Authority's
accountability for the money it receives.

lf you have questions about this report or need additional information, contact the Tampa-

Hillsborough County Expressway Authority's Chief Financial Officer at 1104 East Twiggs Street,
Suite 300, Tampa, Florida 33602, phone number 813-272-6740.
6
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
Distinguished Members of the Authority
Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Tampa-Hillsborough

County
Expressway Authorig (the "Authority"¡ as of and for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
M a n ag e m

enf 's Respon s i b i I ity f o r th e F i n a n c i a I Sfa femenfs

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accorðance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentatìon of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsi bi lity
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the audito/s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. ln making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation anð fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are'appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

significant accounting estimates made

by management, as well as evaluating the

overall

presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the Authority as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 and the respective
changes in net position, and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Re q uired S u pple me ntary I nformation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Manageméni's Discussión and Analysis (pages 2 - 6) Trend Data on lnfrastructure Condition (page
aZ¡ añd pension schedules (pages 38 - 39) be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, atthough not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
hiðtorical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.
Other lnformation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance, as required by
Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is
not a required part of the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. ln our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of state
financial assistance is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements
as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 12, 2016, on our consideration of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Sfandards in
considering the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

ln accordance with

Tampa, Florida
December 12,2016
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STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
June 30,
2015

2016
ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents (notes 82 and C)
Restricted cash and investments to meet current liabilities
lnvestments (notes 83 and C)

$ 2,699,662

Total current assets

RESTRICTED ASSETS
lnvestments (notes 83 and C)
Accrued interest receivable (note 84)
Accounts receivable - tolls (note 84)
Due from governmentalagencies (note 84)
Grant receivable
Total restricted assets

2,360,315

$

15,026,434

16,649,655
10, 963,208

10,835,123

30, 312,525

28,221,872

109,177,152

142,749,419

24,059
14,487,785

5,991

9,603,320
I ,400,016

1,891,400

87 401

159,152,663

120

730,768,705

730,743,277

880

PROPERTY AND EOUIPMENT - net of accumulated

depreciation (notes 810, 811 and D)
Capital assets not being depreciated:
lnfrastructure
Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Vehicles
Total property and equipment

CONSTRUCTION lN PROGRESS (notes 89, 812, D, and

l)

TOTAL ASSETS

742 245 082

742,440,661

7 624 997

3, 893,1 67

939,335,267

894,829,580

29,836,943

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES (note 813)
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES

I

12 197

6,469,288
5,205,999
22,097

6,333,907
5,130,273

$

969,172,210

31,617,407

$ 92q,446,987
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2016
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND
NET POSITION

CURRENT LIABILITIES FROM UNRESTRICTED ASSETS
Accounts payable
Accrued excenses

$

432,153

128,533
319,667

589,336

448.200

1,201,352
1,437,042

665,592
1,680,398
1,850,000
947,167
9,883,275

157,183

Total current liabilities

$

CURRENT LIABILITIES FROM RESTRICTED ASSETS

Accounts, contracts and retainage payable (note 86)
Settlement payable (note K)
Current portion of revenue bonds payable (note E)
Current portion of governmental agencies payable (note E)
lnterest payable
Deferred revenue
Total current liabilities payable from restricted assets
LONG-TERM DEBT due after one year (note E)
Revenue bonds payable
Due to governmental agencies
Settlement payable - net of discount (note K)
Total long-term debt

3,530,000
605,196
9,871,065
5,000
16,649,655

474,684,330
213,833,834

PENSION LIABILITY (Note G)

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

479,733,371

214,191,383
1,437,042

688, 51 8.1 64

695,361,796

803

902 396

249,552

710 053

1,

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES (note 814)

6.432

15,

707 497

510

.877

712,

NET POSITION

lnvested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted - capital projects
Restricted - operation, maintenance and
admin istrative reserve
Unrestricted
Total net position

161,894,415
70,154,160

154,477,051

16,452,039
13,174,086
261,674,700

11,558,995
213,998,1 10

$ 969,172,210

$ 926, 446.987

35,1

11

,639

12,850,425

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these general purpose financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the year ended June 30,

2016
$

Toll revenues
Operating expenses
Operations
fVhintenance

Renewal and replacement
Depreciation
Other expenses
Total operating expenses

2015

80,1 18,452

$

68,21 0J22

4,973,165
2,925,092

4,624,367
2,919,319

870,896
1,043,488
693,747
10,506,388

1,150,214

900,044

I

338. 135

079

General and administrative expenses
2,137,077
849,850
406,858

2,382,107

Payrollexpense
Outside services
Occupancy and office expense

951,911

433,715
3,767,733

Total general and administrative expenses
lncome from operations
Non-operating revenues (expenses)
lnvestment income
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments
Miscellaneous revenue
lnterest expense
Total non-operating expenses

Capitalgrants
lncrease in net position
Net positon at beginning of year

$

Net position at end of year

54,88/,258

444,276
224,461
819,352
(20,444,800)

612,918
(120,411)
822,463
(20,555,861)
(19
891)

1)

46,887,620

35,643,367

788,970

1,244,573

47,676,590

36,887,940

213,998,110

177,110,170

261,674,700

$

213,998 .110

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these general purpose financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended June 30,

Operating activities
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

2016

2015

$ 75,233,988
(10,792,101)
(2,269,625\

$ 63,908,247
(10,729,124)

Qj423/Æ\

62,172,262

Net cash provided by operating activities

51,036,778

Non-capital financing activities
819,352

822,464

(4,558,136)

(3,841,827)

(699,519)
(19,754,34O)
(1,850,000)
882,633
(2,000,000)

(2,499,731)

Miscellaneous non-operating revenue
Capital and related financing activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from governmental advances
Repayment of governmental advances
lnterest paid on revenue bonds
Payments on bonds payable
Cash proceeds from grant
Payments on settlement payable
Net cash used by capital and related financing

3,716,563

activities

lnvesting activities
Purchase of investments, net

(19,766,551)
1,263,851

(1,000,000)

(27,979,362\

Q2j26,695\

(35,926,606)

(30,368,920)
613,717

426.208

lnterest received on investments

(35, 500,398) Q9,755,203\

Net cash used by investing activities

(22,656)

(488,146)

Net decrease in cash

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

5,967,737

5,945,081

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

$

5,456,935

$

5,945,081

Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted for current liabilities

$

2,699,662
2,757,273

$

2,360,315
3,584,766

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

$

5,456,935

$

5,945,081
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED
For the year ended June 30,

2016
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided
by operating activities
lncome from operations
Adjustments to reconcile income from operations
to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation
Loss on disposal of assets
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable - tolls
Due from governmental agencies

Accounts payable
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities
Total adjustments

$ 65,844,331

1,043,488

.258

$ 54.

900,044

4,559
(4,88r',465)
(491,384)

(4,301,875)
(266,181)

u2,806

50,408
(229,167)

5,000

112.486
(3,672,069)

ç 62,172,262

Net cash provided by operating activities

2015

(5,268)
7.480)

ß,u

$ 51, 036.778

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these general purpose financial statements.
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NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30,2016 and 2015
NOTE A - ORGANIZATION AND REPORTING ENTITY

Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority (the "Authority") was created as a body
politic, corporate, and an agency of the State of Florida, under Chapter 348, Part lV, Sections
348.50, et seq., Florida Statutes, effective July 1 , 1974. lt was created for the purposes of
and having the power to construct, reconstruct, improve, extend, repair, maintain and operate
the expressway system within Hillsborough County, Florida.

The Authority's governing body consists of a board of seven members (the "Board"). Four
members are appointed by the Governor of the State of Florida, subject to confirmation by
the State Senate. Serving as ex-officio members are: the Mayor of the City of Tampa, Florida
(the "City"), or his/her designee; one member of the Board of County Commissioners of
Hillsborough County, Florida (the "County"), selected by such board; and, the District
Secretary of the Florida Department of Transportation ("FDOT") serving the district that
contains the County, currently District Seven.
The Authority has been determined to be an "lndependent Special District", as described in
Section 189.403, Florida Statutes, and is a "Related Organization" of the State of Florida,
which is referred to as the "Primary Government." The State of Florida appoints a voting
majority of the board, but does not have financial accountability.
The Authority is a stand-alone entity for financial reporting purposes; there are no component
units included in the accompanying financial statements, and the Authority is not considered
a component unit of another entity.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the Authority's significant accounting policies consistently applied in the
preparation of the accompanying general purpose financial statements follows:

1.

Basis of Accountinq

a Proprietary Fund basis using an
Enterprise Fund to account for all activities of the Authority. An Enterprise Fund is used to
account for operations that are similar to a private business enterprise in those revenues,
expenses including depreciation, and changes in net assets are reported. The Authority's
revenues and expenses are recognized on the accrual basis of accounting, i.e., revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when incurred.

The Authority prepares its financial statements on

The Authority has elected under Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 20 to follow GASB pronouncements and non-conflicting Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations issued prior to November 30, 1989,

2.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and investments with

a

maturity

of three months or less when purchased are

considered cash equivalents.
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NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30,2016and2015
NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

3. lnvestments
lnvestments consist of deposits in investment pools and specific accounts maintained by the
Treasurer of the State of Florida and commercial banks.

4.

Accounts Receivable

On September 17,2010 the Authority converted the Selmon Expressway to all electronic
tolling. Tolls are collected through the use of either SunPass or Video Toll Collection (WC).
WC utilizes cameras to record license plate images and a bill for the tolls is sent to the
registered owner of the vehicle. The unpaid tolls are recorded as an accounts receivable.
The Authority records accounts receivable at estimated net realizable value. Accordingly,
accounts receivable at June 30, 2016 and 2015 are shown net of allowances for doubtful
accounts. The Authority has set their allowance for doubtful accounts at approximately
$5,363,000 and $3,291 ,000 at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

5.

Debt Service Pavments

Debt service payments of principal are recorded at the time funds are disbursed to the paying

agent while interest is recorded in the period it relates to. Funds disbursed to the paying
agent are no longer under the control of the Authority and cannot be retrieved by the
Authority. Principal payments are due on July 1 of each year. lnterest payments are due on
each January 1 and July 1. ln effect, debt service payments of principal will not be recorded
until paid, but interest will be recorded and accrued for the amount due on July 1, at the end
of the fiscal year.

6.

Retainaoe Pavable

Retainage payable represents amounts billed to the Authority by contractors for which
payment is not due pursuant to retained percentage provisions in construction contracts until
substantial completion of performance by contractor and acceptance by the Authority.

7.

Bond Premiums and Discounts

Bond premiums and discounts are amortized over the life of the related bond issued, which
approximates the effective interest method. Bond premiums and discounts are presented as
an addition and a reduction, respectively to the bond payable balances.

8.

Construction in Proqress

Costs associated with the construction of new infrastructure assets or betterments of existing

infrastructure assets are recorded as construction in progress. Upon completion of
construction or betterment of an asset, the construction in progress account is closed to the
infrastructure asset account.
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NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2016 and 2015
NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONtiNUEd

9.

Propertv and Equipment

lnfrastructure assets, roadways and bridges, are recorded at historical cost, including the
costs of right of way, engineering fees, and construction cost. Furniture and equipment,
including toll collection equipment, are recorded at historical cost plus the cost of installation
for toll collection equipment. The Authority capitalizes asset acquisitions over $5,000.

10. Depreciation
Depreciation of toll equipment, buildings, toll facilities, and furniture and equipment is
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

Buildings
Electronic toll collection equipment
Furniture and equipment
Computers and software

5

-

36 years
10 years
5 years
3 years

The preservation method of accounting is used for infrastructure assets; roads, bridges and
other highway improvements with indefinite lives. lt is the policy of the Authority that all
necessary actions will be taken to ensure that its infrastructure assets will be maintained,
repaired, renewed and, when needed, replaced so as to last indefinitely. Depreciation is not
recorded as long as the infrastructure assets are maintained at the level established by the
Authority. ln the event the infrastructure assets of the expressway system fall below
acceptable standards of condition established by the policy, a special "contra asset" account
will be established against the capital asset that was determined to be deficient in an amount
equal to the cost required to restore the asset to an acceptable standard. The Authority's
consulting engineer is required to provide a cost estimate of the amount required to bring the
asset up to the established standard. Routine maintenance costs and renewal and
replacement costs, since they are needed to preserve the value of existing infrastructure
assets, are expensed annually. This treatment is consistent with practices of other similar
entities within the toll bridge, turnpike and tunnel industry.
1

l.

Capitalized lnterest

lnterest costs on funds borrowed to finance the construction of property and equipment
during the period of construction, net of interest income, are capitalized and, if the related
asset is a depreciable asset, depreciated over the life of the asset. There were no interest
costs capitalized for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30,2016 and 2015
NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

12. Deferred

Outflows of Resources

The Deferred Outflows of Resources on refunding of revenue bonds is the difference

between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of refunded bonds presented on
the statement of net position at June 30, 2016 and 2015 as a deferred outflow of resources in

the amounts of $28,858,873 and $30,760,980, respectively. The amortization period of
deferred refunding losses, is the remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt,
whichever is shorter.
The Deferred Outflows of Resources on the pension liability relates to pre-payments of future
pension contributions and other proportionate share changes of the pension liability since the
last measurement date. This totaled $978,070 and $856,427 for the years ended June 30,
2016 and 2015, respectively.

13. Deferred

lnflows of Resources

The Deferred lnflows of Resources on the pension liability relates to differences between
expected and actual earnings on pension investments. This totaled $249,552 and $710,053
at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

14. Restricted

Funds

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Authority's
policy to use restricted resources first and then unrestricted resources when they are needed.

15. Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires the use of estimates that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. These estimates are based on management's knowledge
and experience. Accordingly, actual results could differ from these estimates.

16. Operatinq Revenues and Exoenses
The Authority's operating revenues and expenses consist of revenues earned and expenses
incurred relating to the operations and maintenance of the Expressway System. All other
revenues and expenses are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

17. Budqets

and Budqetarv Accountinq

The Authority follows the following procedures in establishing budgetary data:

The Authority's operating budget is recommended by the Finance and Budget Gommittee of
the Authority's governing board. The budget is based upon a review of current revenues and
expenditures and the projected future funding needs of the Authority for administration,
operations, maintenance, and the annual approved work program. The budget is then
approved by the Authority's governing board.
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NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2016 and 2015
NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONtiNUEd

The Authority's renewal and replacement and capital improvement projects budget is
recommended by the Finance and Budget Committee of the Authori$'s governing board,
based on the first year of the submitted five-year capital projects program.
NOTE C - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The total carrying amounts of the Authority's cash and investments (unrestricted and
restricted) was $172,988,085 and $137,549,625 with a fair value of $173,061,944 and
$137,399,024 at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Cash consists of deposits with the
Florida State Treasurer and commercial banks at June 30, 2016 and 2015. lnvestments are
reported at fair value in the accompanying financial statements.

Deposits are maintained with commercial banks that are organized under the laws of the
United States of America or the State of Florida, and are insured by the Federal Deposit
lnsurance Corporation to legal limits. Security for deposits in excess of insured levels is
provided by the requirements of the "Florida Security for Public Deposits Act", Chapter 280,
Florida Statutes. ln accordance with these statutes, qualified public depositories are required
to pledge eligible collateral in varying percentages. Any losses to public depositors are
covered by applicable deposit insurance, by the sale of pledged securities, and if necessary,
by assessments against other qualified public depositories.
The following is the percent of any issuer with whom the Authority had invested more than
5% of the Authority's total portfolio as of June 2016 and 2015:

lssuer

2016

20'15

Federated Treasury obligations
ft/brgan Stanley lnstitutional Liquidation

4.40o/o

92.8}o/o

5.60%
91.00%

Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, authorizes the Authority to invest surplus funds in the
following:

Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund or any intergovernmental
investment pool authorized pursuant to the Florida lnterlocal Cooperation Act of
1969, as provided in Florida Statue 163.01.

a. The Local
b.

Securities and Exchange Commission registered money market funds with the
highest credit quality rating from a nationally recognized rating agency.

c.

lnterest bearíng time deposits or savings accounts in qualified public depositories,
as defined in Florida Statues 280.02.

d. Direct obligations

of the U.S. Treasury
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NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30,2016and2015
NOTE C - CASH AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

All investments held by the Florida Treasury lnvestment Pool at June 30, 2016 and 2015
were categorized as category 3 investments, were uninsured and unregistered, and were
held by the Authority's custodian, but not in the Authority's name. The Florida Treasury
lnvestment Pool was rated by Standard and Poors as A+f at June 30, 2016 and 2015.
Additionally, the effective duration on the Florida Treasury lnvestment Pool is 2.61 years and
2.67 years at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

As of June 30,2016 and2015, $4,654,179 and $4,532,832, respectively, was collateralized
by the State of Florida collateral pool, which is a multiple financial institution pool with the
ability to assess its members for collateral shortfalls if any of its member institutions fail.
Required collateral is defined under Chapter 280 of the Florida Statutes, Security for Public
Deposits.

As of June 30, 2016 and 2015, other than the investments in the Florida Treasury lnvestment
Pool, all of the investments are in the Authority's name.
Certain cash and investments totaling and carried at $159,385,362 and $124,359,687, with a
fair value of $159,394,075 and 5124,203,586 as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively,
are restricted as to their use by agreements or bond covenants.

The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the

valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs;
Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

Money market funds and certificates of deposifs; Consist of cash deposits with financial
institutions and money market funds. The Authority uses quoted market prices of identical
assets on active exchanges, or Level 1 measurements.
lnvestments; Primarily consist of fixed income funds. The Authority uses quoted market
prices of identical assets on active exchanges, or Level 1 measurements.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not

be

indicative of the net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the
Authority believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market
participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of
certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the
reporting date.

The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Authority's
investments at fair value as of:
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NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2016and2015
NOTE C - CASH AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

lnrestments
Cash and cash equiralents
Short term inrestments
Commercial paper/repo agreements
Total short term

$

Cash and cash equi\alents
Short term in\estments
Com mercial paper/repo agreements
Total short term

10,041
96,080,812
20,859,543

$

$

$

4,588,563

009 $163,016,446 $

$ 167,

Level 3

4,588,563

46,066,050

46,066,050

Lelel

Fair Value

4,588,563

497

$

4,532,832

77,785,661

49,135,450

49,135,450

$

Lercl 3

$

61,839,284
15,945,880

66,372,116
.880
15,
82,318,493

$ 131, 453.943

$

Lewl 2

1

$497$

Fixed
US Gowmment obligations
Total

Lewl 2

1

121,538,959 116,950,396

June 30, 2015

ln\€stments

10,041
100,669,375
20 859 u3

Fixed
US Gorcmment obligations
Total

Lewl

Fair Value

June 30 2016

126,921,111

$

4,532,832

4,532,832

$

NOTE D - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Changes in property and equipment and construction in progress during the years ended
June 30, 2016 and 2015 consist of the following:
June
Assets subject to depreciation
Buildings and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Vehicle

$

Less accumulated depreciation

30,2015

Total property and equipment
Construction in progress

$ 152,188
670,293

27,399,490

37,311,454
(25.614.070\

822,48'l
(1,043,488)

38,1 33,935

730,743.277
$742,440,661

$

June 30, 2016

10,525,638
26,729,197
56,619

11,697,384
Assets not subject to depreciation
lnfrastructure

Deletions

Additions

3,893,167

21

$

$

10,677,826
56 619

(26,657,558)
11,476,377

(221,007)
25,428
__q_l-1_99ÉzÐ

730,768,705
$

$ 3.931,400 $

_6742,245,0!4_

(199,570)

$
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NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30,2016and2015
NOTE D - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS - CONtiNUEd

June

.2014

Additions

De

June 30, 2015

Assets subject to depreciation
Buildings and improvements

Furniture and equipment
Vehicle

$

10,525,638

$

$

10,525,638

26,729,197
56,619

56,619

1,771,632

37,311,454

(900,044)

(25,614,070)

871,588

11,697,384

31,267,266

730,743,277

35,539,822
Less accumulated depreciation

$

1,771,632

24,957,565

(24,7 14.026)

10,825,796
Assets not subject to depreciation
lnfrastructure
Total property and equipment

Construction in progress

699,476,011
$ 710,301,807

$

32,138,854

$

s742,440,661

$ 33,073,200 $ 3,784,787 932,e64,82qt $

3,893,167

NOTEE-LONG-TERMDEBT
Long-term debt consists of revenue bonds payable and amounts due to other governmental
entities, as follows:

1.

Revenue Bonds Pavable

The Authority issued $334,165,000 in Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority
Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2012A and 20128; $40,420,000 in Tampa-Hillsborough
County Expressway Authority Taxable Revenue Bonds, Series 2012C; and $70,105,000 in
Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority Taxable Refunding Revenue Bonds,
Series 2012D during the year ended June 30, 2013. The funds were used to refund the
Series 2Q02 and Series 2005 bonds; payoff the SIB and TFRTF loans; fund the Authority's
portion of the l-4lSelmon Connector project and the AET conversion; and fund reserves for
debt service, operations, maintenance and administration and renewal and replacement.
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NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2016 and 2015
NOTE E - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued
Bonds payable as of June 30, 2016 are as follows:
Series 2O12A bonds payable
Serial bonds due from July 1, 2016 through July 1,2032,
bearing interest from 3.00% to 5.00%

$

97,850,000
93,035,000

Term bonds due July 1,2037, bearing interest at 5.00%

1,5 50.000

Term bonds due July 1, 2037, bearing interest at 4.OO%

192,4 35,000

Series 20128 bonds payable
Term bonds due July 1,2042, bearing interest at 5.00%

141 730 000

Series 2O12C bonds payable
Serial bonds (tæcable) due from July 1, 2015 through July I ,2021,
bearing interest from 1 .32o/o to 3.04%

38,570,000

Series 2012D bonds payable
Serial bonds (taxable) due from July 1, 2021 through July I ,2026,
bearing interest from 3.04o/o lo 3.84Vo

70 105 000

Total bonds payable
Plus unamortized premium

442,840,OOO

35 374 330

478,214,330
(3,530,000)

Less current portion
Long-term portion

$

474,684,330

The Series 2012 bonds are secured by a pledge of, and lien on, the net system revenues of
the expressway system less the cost of operations, maintenance, and administrative
expenses. Debt service requirements to maturity at June 30, 2016 are as follows:

$

2017

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022 2027 2032 2037 2042 -

2026
2031
2036
2041
2043

Total

lnterest

Principal

$

3,530,000
5,175,000
6,790,000
8,450,000
10,210,000
62,160,000

19,686,004

$

23,216,004
24,768,371
26,232,633
27,682,228
29,152,264
150,871,769
149,726,500
148,296,200
146,988,050
58 352 000

$

785,286,019

19,593,371

19,442,633
19,232,228

18,942,264
88,711,769
74,471,500
54,086,200
26,823,050

75,255,OOO

94,210,000
120,165,000
56,895,000

1,457,O0O

I
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NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2016 and2015
NOTE E - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

The Division of Bond Finance issued $88,075,000 and $326,625,000 State of Florida TampaHillsborough County Expressway Authority Revenue Bonds on behalf of the Authority on
March 14, 2002, and July 28, 2005, respectively. The 2005 proceeds were used to pay a
portion of the costs of completing the acquisition and construction of the Reversible Lanes
Þroject, to repay interim loans from the Florida Department of Transportation - State
Transportation Trust Fund of $110 million, and to refund bonds issued in 1997.
The refunding portion of the 2005 bonds, together with other legally available moneys, will be
used to refund the State of Florida, Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority
Revenue Bonds, Series 1997 maturing in the years 2008 through 2027, inclusive, in the
outstanding principal amount of $1 12,1 10,000.

The Series 2002 and Series 2005 bonds payable were refunded during the year ended
June 30, 2013.

2.

Debt Service Reserve Requirements

The Authority has established two Debt Service Reserve Accounts; the 2012 A/B Reserve
Subaccount and the 2012 CID Reserve Subaccount. Amounts deposited into the accounts
equalthe Maximum Annual Debt Service for the Series 2012 bonds and are pledged solely to
secure repayment of the bond issue.
The balance of these accounts is as follows at June 30,:
2015

2016

NB Reserve
2012 CID Reserve
2012

3.

$

16,558,242
14,459,476

$

31 ,O17,718

$

16,508,264
14,407,769

$

30,916,033

Due to Other GovernmentalAoencies

The Authority is indebted to other governmental entities as follows at June 30,

2015

2016

$

Due to State of Florida - FDOT
Due to State of Florida - FDOT
State Transportation Trust Fund
Due to other governments

200,074,889 $ 200,432,438
13,758,945
947 167
21 5,1 38,550

13,758,945
605 196

214,439,030
(605,1e6)

Less current portion

$ 213,833,834
24

(947,167\

ç
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NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2016and2015
NOTE E - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

The amounts due to State of Florida - FDOT resulted from payments of operations and
maintenance costs of the expressway system forthe year ended June 30,2013 and prior
which occurred under the Lease Purchase Agreement (LPA) with FDOT from November 18,
1997 - December 20, 2012. The LPA was terminated on December 20,2012. The Authority
agreed to pay FDOT in twenty annual installments beginning July 1,2025.

The amount due State of Florida - FDOT - State Transportation Trust Fund resulted from
advances made to the Authority for the purposes under Section 339.08(2Xg), Florida
Statutes, as interim financing for future projects. The amount owed at June 30, 2016 and
2015 was $12,034,945. The Authority has also negotiated a $1 .724 million interest free loan.
These loans are payable in twenty annual installments beginning July 1, 2025.
The following is long-term debt activity for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015:

Due within
2016

June 30,

2015

Deletions

Additions

June 30,

2016

one year

Revenue bonds
Series 20124
Series 20128

$ 1 92,435,000

$ 192,435,000

$

$

40,420,000

Series 2012C

40,420,000

Series 20120

70,1 05,000

(1,850,000)

444,690,000

(1,850,000)

442,840,000

36,893,371

(1,519,04'l)

35,374,330

Add unamortized bond premium

$

14'1,730,000

141,730,000

3,530,000

68,255,000
3,530,000

Relenue bonds payable - net of
premium

(3,369,041)

481,583,371

478,214,330

3,530,000

Due to other governments
FDOTLong Term Debt
State Transportation Trust Fund Loan
Other due to golemments
Total due to other golemments

Settlement payable
Total long-term debt

(357,54e)

200,432,438
1

947,167

605,1 96

215,1 38,550

605,1 96

(e47,167)

(1,304,716)
(1,680,398)

3,117,440

$ 699,839,361

200,074,889
13,758,945

3,758,945

$

25

605,196

$

605,

1

96

214,439,030

1,437,042

(6,354,155) $ 694,q90,40?

605,

1

96

605,

1

96

1,437,042

_9_5,572,238_
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NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30,2016 and 2015
NOTE E - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued
Due within

2015

Deletions

Additions

June 30, 2014

Revenue bonds
Series 20124
Series 20128

$ 192,435,000

-

$

141,730,000

Series 2012C

40,420,000

Series 20120

70,1 05,000

$

141,730,000

40,420,000

1,850,000

70,1 05,000

444,690,000

38,412,411

(1,519,040)

483,102,411

(1,519,040)

481,583,371

(2,115,260)

200,432,438

Add unamortized bond premium
Relenue bonds payable - net of
premium

$ 192,435,000

-

444,690,000

one year

June 30, 2015

1,850,000

36,893,371
1,850,000

Due to other governments
FDOT Long Term Debt

State Transportation Trust Fund Loan

0ther due to golemments
Total due to other gowmments

Settlement payable
Total long-term debt

1

2,769,396

99,778,302
1

3,758,945
383,471

-

947,167

215,138,550

947,167

3,716,563

213,920,718

13,758,945

947,167 (383,4i1) 947,167
(2,498,731)

(5e3,757)

3,711,197

$

$ 700,734,326

3,i16,563

$

3,117,440

1,680,398

(4,611,528) $ 699,839,361 $ 4,4i7,565

NOTE F - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

It is the Authority's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned, but unused vacation
and sick leave, which will be paid to employees as of the statement of net position date, or
upon retirement from the Authority. The liability for unpaid compensated absences was
$363,759 and $276,1 1 1 at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
NOTE G - DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS

State of Florida Retirement System (FRS)

All permanent employees of the Authority participate in the State of Florida Retirement
System (the "FRS"), a multiple-employer cost sharing defined benefit retirement plan or
defined contribution retirement plan, administrated by the Florida Department of
Administration, Division of Retirement. As a general rule, membership in the FRS is
compulsory for all employees working in a regular established position for a state agency,
county government, district school board, state university, community college or a
participating city or special district within the State of Florida. The FRS provides retirement
and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments and death benefits to plan members
and beneficiaries. Employees are classified in either the regular service class or the senior
management service class ("SMSC"). The senior management service class is for members
who fillthe senior level management positions.
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NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2016 and 2015
NOTE G - DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS - Continued

Benefits are established by Chapter 121, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 605, Florida
Administrative Code. Amendments to the law can be made only by an act of the Florida
Legislature.
Employees may participate in the Public Employee Optional Retirement Program (the
"lnvesiment Plan"), a defined contribution retirement program, in lieu of participation in the
defined benefìt retirement plan ("Pension Plan"). lf the lnvestment Plan is elected, active
membership in the defined benefit retirement plan is terminated. Eligible members of the
lnvestment Plan are vested at one year of service and receive a contribution for self-direction
in an investment product with a third party administrator selected by the State Board of
Administration. The contribution rates for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 were
7.260/o and 7.37o/o, respectively, for regular class and 21.43o/o and 21.14o/o for senior
management class, respectivelY.
For employees in the Pension Plan, benefits are computed on the basis of age, average final
compensation and service credit. Regular class and senior management class employees
who were enrolled in the FRS prior to July 1 ,2011 and retire at or after age 62 with at least
six years of credited service or 30 years of service, regardless of age, are entitled to a
retirement benefit payable monthly for life, based on their final average compensation of their
five highest fiscal years of pay for each year of credited service. Employees enrolled on or
after July 1, 2011 and who retire at or after age 65 with at least eight years of credited
service, or 33 years of service, regardless of age, are entitled to a retirement benefit payable
monthly for life, as explained above, based on their eight highest fiscal years of pay. Using
their date of enrollment as a basis, vested employees with less than the minimum years of
service may retire before the minimum age and receive reduced retirement benefits.

ln addition to the above benefits, the FRS administers a Deferred Retirement Option
Program ('DROP'). This program allows eligible employees to defer receipt of monthly
retirement benefit payments while continuing employment with a Florida Retirement System
employer for a period not to exceed 60 months after electing to participate. Deferred monthly
benefits are held in the FRS Trust Fund and accrue interest.
Starting on July 1, 2011, Chapter 2011-68 of the Laws of Florida required members of the
FRS not enrolled in DROP to contribute 3o/o of their salary to their retirement. Governmental
employers are required to make contributions to the FRS based on statewide contribution
rates. For the year ended June 30, 2016, the contribution rate applied to regular employee
salaries was7.260/q including 1.660/o for a post-retirement health insurance subsidy ('HlS').
For the year ended June 30, 2015, the contribution rate was 7.37o/o, which included 1.260/o
for HlS. The fiscal year 2016 contribution rate applied to senior management salaries was
21.43o/o, including 1.660/o HlS. For the year ended June 30, 2015 contribution rate was
21.14o/o, which included 1.26% for HlS. For the year ended June 30, 2016 contribution rate
applied to the salaries of the employees in DROP was 12.88%, including 1.660/o for HlS. For
the yearended June 30,2015 contribution ratewas 12.28o/o, which included 1.260/o for HlS.
The total contributions for employees covered by the Pension Plan for the years ended
June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $230,975 and $226,970, respectively.
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NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2016 and 2015
NOTE G - DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS - Continued

a

Deferred Compensation plan (the "Plan") for public
employees of the State of Florida, under Section 457 of the lnternal Revenue Code, covering
substantially all of its employees. The Authority's contributions to the Plan are based upon
the employee's salaries, Contributions of $53,017 and $51,787 were made to the Plan for the
year ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The Authority also participates in

Health lnsurance Subsidy (HlS) Program

The Retiree Health lnsurance Subsidy (HlS) Program is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan established and administrated in accordance with Section
112.363, Florida Statutes. The benefit is a monthly payment to assist retiree of the stateadministrated retirement systems in paying their health insurance costs, For the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2014, eligible retirees and beneficiaries received a monthly HIS payment
equal to the number of years of service credited at retirement multiplied by $S. The minimum
payment is $30 and the maximum payment is $150 per month, pursuant to Section 112.363,
Florida Statutes. To be eligible to receive a HIS benefit, a retiree under one of the stateadministered retirement systems must provide proof of eligible health insurance coverage,
which can include Medicare.
Net Pension Liability

The component of the collective net pension liability of the Authority for the measurement
date of June 30, 2016 and 2015 is shown below:

HIS

FRS
June 30,

2016

June 30, 2015

$

950,672

$

411,316

_$__@.191_

$

491,080

Total

$

1,490,803

$

902,396

The total pension liability for each plan was determined by the plans' actuary and reported
in the plans' valuations dated July 1 , 2015 and July 1 , 2014 for the net pension liability as of
June 30,2016 and 2015, respectively.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
Actuarial assumptions for both cost-sharing defined benefit plans are reviewed annually by
the Florida Retirement System Actuarial Assumptions Conference. The FRS Pension Plan
has a valuation performed annually. The HIS program has a valuation performed biennially
that is updated for GASB reporting in the year a valuation is not performed. The most recent
experience study for the FRS Pension Plan was completed in 2014 for the period July 1,
2008, through June 30,2013. Becausethe HIS Program isfunded on a pay-as-you-go basis,
no experience study has been completed for this program. The actuarial assumptions that
determined the total pension liability for the HIS Program were based on certain results of the
most recent experience study for the FRS Pension Plan.
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NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2016 and2015
NOTE G - DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS - Continued

The total pension liability for each cost-sharing defined plan was determined using the
individual entry age actuarial cost method. lnflation increases for both plans is assumed at
2.600/o. Payroll growth, including inflation, for both plans is assumed at 3.25%. Both the
discount rate and the long-term expected rate of return used for FRS Pension Plan
investments is 7.65%. The plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees.
Therefore, the discount rate for calculating the total pension liability is equal to the long-term
expected rate of return. Because the HIS Program uses the pay-as-you-go funding structure,
a municipal bond rate of 3.80o/o was used to determine the total pension liability for the
program (Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond Municipal Bond lndex). Mortality
assumptions for both plans were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale
BB tables.

The following changes in actuarial assumptions occurred during the year ended June 30,
2016:
a

.

FRS: There were no changes in actuarial assumptions. The inflation rate assumption
remained at2.60Yo, the real payroll growth assumption remained at 0.65%, and the
overall payroll growth rate assumption remained at 3.25% The long-term expected
rate of return remained at7.650/o

HIS: the municipal rate used to determine total pension liability decreased from
to 3.80%.

4.29o/o

The long-term expected rate of return, net of investment expense on pension plan
investments was 7.65% as of June 30, 2016. This rate was determined using a forwardlooking capital market economic model. The table below shows the assumptions for each of
the asset classes in which the plan was invested at that time based on the long-term target
asset allocation. The allocation policy's description of each asset class was used to map the
target allocation to the asset classes shown below. Each asset class assumption is based on
a consistent set of underlying assumptions, and includes an adjustment for the inflation
assumption. The expected rate of return is presented in arithmetic and geometric means.

Annual

Asset Class
Cash
Fixed income

Global equity
Realestate (property)
Private equity
Strategic investments

Target
Allocation

Compounded

Arithmetic Annual

Return

(Geometric)
Return

1%

3.2%

3.1%

18%
53%
10%

4.8%

4.7Vo

8.5%

7.2%

6.8%

6.2%

6%

11.9%
6.7%

6.1%

12%

29
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NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2016 and2015
NOTE G - DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS - Continued

Sensitivity Analysis
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the
discount rate. The sensitivity analysis shows the impact to the collective net pension liability
of the Authority if the discount rate was 1.00% higher or 1.00% lower than the current
discounted rate at June 30, 2016.
FRS Net Pensio n Liabilitv

Current

$

1% Decrease

DiscounVRate of
Raturn

1% lncrease

6.65%

7.65%

8.65%

2.463.407

950,672

$

t308.171)

$

HIS Net Pen sion Liabilitv

Current

$

1% Decrease

DiscounURate of
Return

1% lncrease

2.80%

3.80%

4.80%

615,454

540.131

$

$

477,322

Pension Expense and Defened Outflows/ lnflows of Resources
ln accordance with GASB 68, paragraph 54 and71, changes in the net pension liability are
recognized in pension expense in the current measurement period, except as indicated
below. For each of the following, a portion is recognized in pension expense in the current
measurement period, and the balance is amortized as deferred outflows or deferred inflows
of resources using a systematic and rational method over a closed period, as defined below:
a

Differences between expected and actual experience with regard to economic and
demographic factors - amortized over the average expected remaining service life of
all employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan (active and
inactive employees).
Changes of assumptions or other inputs - amortized over the average expected
remaining service life of all employees that are provided with pensions through the
pension plan (active and inactive employees),
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NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2016 and2015
NOTE G - DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS - Continued

o

Differences between expected and actual earnings on pension plan investments are
amortized over five years.

The average expected remaining service life of all employees provided with pensions through

the pension plans at June 30, 2016 and 2015, was 6.3 years for FRS and7.2 for HIS for
each year.

At June 30, 2016, the Authority's proportion of the FRS was 0.0074 percent, which was an
increase of 0.0007from its proportion measured as of June 30,2015. AtJune 30,2016, the
Authority's proportion of the HIS was 0.0053 percent, which was consistent with its proportion
measured as of June 30, 2015.
For the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, the Authority recognized pension expense of
approximately $231,000 and $1 80,000, respectively.

At June 30,2016 and 2015, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources

and

deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:
201 6

Deferred Outfloue
of Resources

Deferred lnflows / Outflows of Resources

Deferred lnflouæ
of Resources

Differences betr¡ræen epected and actual

eperience

$

100,363

$

(22,547)

105,593

Changes of assumptions
Net difference betu¡een projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments

(227,005)

292

Changes in proportion and differences betueen
Tampa-Hillsborou g h Cou nty Epressraaay Authority's
contributions and proportionate share of contributions

547,110

Tampa-Hillsborough County Epressway Authority's
contributions subsequent to the measurement date

224 712

Total

$

31

978.070

g

(249,552)
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NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2016and2Q15
NOTE G - DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS - Continued
2015
Deferred Outflovrs

Deferred lnflows / Outflows of Resources

of Resources

Differences betr,rreen epected and actual

eperience

Deferred lnflovtæ
of Resou rces

$

$

(25,454)

88,708

Changes of assumptions
Net difference betr¡æen projected and actual

(684,599)

236

earnings on pension plan investments
Changes in proportion and differences betuæen
Tampa-Hillsborough County Epressway Authority's
contributions and proportionate share of contributions

567,789

g h Co u nty Expressuay Auth ority's
contributions subsequent to the measurement date

199,694

Tampa- Hillsborou

Total

856,427

$

$

(710,053)

The $224,712 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from
the Authority's contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2016. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

l¡leas urement Period Ending
Year ending June 30:

$

2017

2018
2019
2020
202',|

54,962
54,962
54,962
242,188
90,460
6,272

Thereafter

$

32

503,806
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NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2016 and2015
NOTE G - DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS - CONtiNUEd

Actuarial Assumptions
Actuarial assumptions for both cost-sharing defined benefit plans are reviewed annually by
the Florida Retirement System Actuarial Assumptions Conference. The FRS Pension Plan
has a valuation performed annually. The HIS program has a valuation performed biennially
that is updated for GASB reporting in the year a valuation is not performed. The most recent
experience study for the FRS Pension Plan was completed in 2Q14 for the period July 1,
2008, through June 30,2013. Because the HIS Program is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis,
no experience study has been completed for this program. The actuarial assumptions that
determined the total pension liability for the HIS Program were based on certain results of the
most recent experience study for the FRS Pension Plan.
The total pension liability for each coslsharing defined benefit plan was determined using the
individual entry age actuarial cost method. lnflation increases for both plans is assumed at
2.600/o. Payroll growth, including inflation, for both plans is assumed at 3.25o/o. Both the

discount rate and the long-term expected rate of return used for FRS Pension Plan
investments is 7.65%. The plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make
all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the
discount rate for calculating the total pension liability is equal to the long-term expected rate
of return.

Because the HIS Program uses a pay-as-you-go funding structure, a municipal bond rate of
3.80% was used to determine the total pension liability for the program (Bond Buyer General
Obligation 2O-Bond Municipal Bond lndex).

Mortality assumptions for both plans were based on the Generational RP-2000 with
Projection Scale BB tables.

Additional Financial and Actuarial Information
Additional audited financial information supporting the Schedules of Employer Allocations
and the Schedule of Pensions Amounts by Employer is located in the Florida CAFR and in
the Florida Retirement System Pension Plan and Other State-Administered Systems CAFR
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. The system's CAFR and the actuarial valuation
reports reference herein are available online at:
http:l/vrnrw.

d

ms. myflorida.

comlworkforce*operations/retiremenlpu blication s

The system's CAFR and actuarial repofts may also be obtained by contacting the Division of
Retirement at:
Department of Management Services
Division of Retirement
Bureau of Research and Member Communications
P.O. Box 9000
Tallahassee, Florida 3231 5-900
850-488-4706 or tollfree at 877-377-1737
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NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2016and2015
NOTE H - EMPLOYEE SEVERANCE

The Authority's personnel policies and procedures manual provide unclassified managerial,
administrative and unclassified executive management positions a severance benefit upon
termination without cause. The number of months of severance pay ranges from three to
twelve.
NOTE

I-

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Consultino Contracts
The Authority has entered into contracts with consultants for design, engineering, technology,
construction and other services. The committed, but unspent balances of these contracts
were $8,654,063 and $1 ,869,729 as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
NOTE J - CURRENT LEASE AGREEMENT WITH TENANT

The Authority leases certain office space and property to tenants which expire in various
years through 2034.

The approximate future minimum rentals, including renewal options, to be received under
these non-cancelable operating leases are as follows:
Year endinq June 30.
2017

$

2018
20'19

2020
2021
Thereafter

$

358,080
358,080
358,080
358,080
358,080
328,913
2,119,313

NOTE K - CONTINGENCIES

1.

General

No suits and claims are pending against the Authority

2.

Settlement Pavable

The Authority and PCL settled a dispute arising out of the Reversible Express Lane Project
during the year ended June 30, 2012. The parties settled in January of 2012, with a final
agreement that the Authority would pay $1 1 million between March 2012 and December 2016 to
PCL. As of June 30, 2016, $9.5 million has been paid, leaving $1,500,000 owed, less a present
value discount of $62,958.
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NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2016 and 2015
NOTE K - CONTINGENCIES - Continued

The following is the schedule of principal and interest payments required to be made as of
June 30, 2016:

Fiscalrrear ending June 30.

2017

$

t,500,000

NOTEL-RISKMANAGEMENT
The Authority is exposed to various risk of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omission; injuries to employees; and mutual disasters for
which the Authority purchased commercial insurance.
NOTE M - APPLICABLE NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

GASB Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions - an Amendment of
GASB Statement No.27, was issued in June 2012, and was implemented during the year
ended June 30,2015. The statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for
pensions provided to governmental employees through pension plans that are administered
by a trust. The Authority participates in the Florida Retirement System that is administered by
the State of Florida. Under this standard, the Authority is required to report a net pension
liability, pension expense, and pension-related deferred inflows and outflows of resources
based on its proportionate share of the collective amounts for all the governments in the
Florida Retirement System plan.

71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the
Measurement Date - an Amendment of GASB Statement 68, was issued November 2013 and
GASB Statement

was required to be applied simultaneously with the provisions of GASB Statement 68. The
objective of this statement is to address an issue regarding application of the transition
provisions of GASB Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. The issue
relates to amounts associated with contributions, if any, made by a state or local government
employer or non-employer contributing entity to a defined benefit pension plan after
measurement date of the government's beginning net pension liability.

GASB Statement 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, was issued February 2015
and was adopted by the Authority during the year ended June 30, 2016. The objective of this
statement is to improve financial reporting by clarifying the definition of fair value for financial
reporting purposes, establishing general principles for measuring fair value providing
additional fair value application guidance and enhancing disclosures about fair value
measurements.
NOTE N - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Authority has evaluated events and transactions occurring subsequent to June 30, 2016

as of December 12,2016 which is the date the financial statements were available to be
issued.
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TREND DATA ON INFRASTRUCTURE CONDITION
June 30,2016

The Authority has elected to use the Modified Approach to account for maintenance of its
infrastructure assets. The Florida Department of Transportation (the "FDOT") annually inspects
the Authority's roadways. The FDOT utilizes the Maintenance Rating Program ("MRP") to
assess the condition of the Expressway System. Copies of the MRP manual may be obtained
from the State Maintenance Office, 605 Suwannee Street, Mail Station 52, Tallahassee, FL
32399-0450. The MRP manual provides a uniform evaluation system for maintenance features
of the State Highway System. The roadways are rated on a 1OO-point scale, with 100 meaning
that every aspect of the roadway is in new and perfect condition. The Authority's system as a
whole is given an overall rating, indicating the average condition of all roadways operated by the
Authority. The assessment of condition is made by visual and mechanical tests designed to
reveal any condition that would reduce highway-user benefìts below the maximum level of
service. The Authority's policy is to maintain the roadway condition at a MRP rating of 90 or
better.

The results of the last three inspections are as follows:

Evaluation Period Fiscal Year

Ratinq

2016
2015
2014

94o/o
94o/o

94%

The budget-to-actual expenditures for preservation for the past five years are as follows:

FiscalYear
2016
2015
2014
2013
2012

Budget

$
$
$
$
$

3,133,436
3,003,175
2,910,880
2,845,083
3,438,094

37

Actual
2,925,O92

2,919,319
2,766,293
2,624,294
3,430,376
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SCH EDU LE OF TAM PA-H LLS BOROUG H COU NTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY'S
PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY FOR THE FLORIDA RETIREMENT
SYSTEM AND HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY PROGRAM
I

Forthe years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

Florida Retire me nt Syste m
2016
Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority's
proportion of the net pension liability (asset)

o.007360228%

Tampa-Hillsborough County Erpressway Authority's
proportionate share of the net pension liability
(asset)

$

Tampa-Hillsborough County Epressrruay Authority's
covered-employee payroll

$

5

0.006741295%

950,672 $
1, 833.148

$

41

1

,316

1,622,163

Tampa- Hillsbo rou g h Cou nty Ep ressraray Auth ority's

proportionate share of the net pension liability
(asset) as a percentage of its covered-employee

payroll

51.860/o

25.360/o

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability

92.00%

96.09%

Health lnsurance Subsidy Program
2015

2016
Tampa-Hillsborough County Erpressway Authority's
proportion of the net pension liability (asset)

O.0O5296215o/o 0.005250370%

Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority's
proportionate share of the net pension liability
(asset)

$

540.1 31

$

491,080

$

'l,622,163

Tampa-Hillsborough County Erpressway Authority's
covered-employee payroll

_s__1,833,14q_

Tampa-Hillsborough County Erpressway Authority's
proportionate share of the net pension liability
(asset) as a percentage of its covered-employee
payroll

29-460/o

3O.27o/o

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability

0.50%

0.99%

Notes:
1) The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the Plan fiscal year
measurement date of June 30th.
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SCH EDULE OF TAMPA-H I LLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY'S

CONTRIBUTIONS FOR THE FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM AND
HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY PROGRAM

Forthe years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

Florida Retire me nt Syste m
2016

$

Contractually required contribution
Contributions in relation to the contractually
required contribution

2015

194,987 $

179,449

194 987

179,449

Contribution deficiency (excess)

$

Tampa-Hillsborough Cou nty Erpressway
Authority's covered-employee payroll

$ 1,833,148 $

Contributions as a percentage of coveredemployee payroll

$

1,622,163
11.06%

10.64%

Health Insurance Subsidy Program
2015

2016

$

Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the contractually
required contribution

29,725 I

20,245

29 725

20,245

Contribution deficiency (excess)

$

Tampa-Hillsborough County Epressway
Authority's covered-employee payroll

$ 1,833,148 $

Contributions as a percentage of coveredemployee payroll

$

1.620/o

1,622,163
1.25%

Notes:
1) The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the Plan fiscal year
measurement date of June 30rh.
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Forthe year ended June 30, 2016

State Grantor/Pro iect Title

Florida

De partme

State

Contract

CSFA#

Number

Erpenditures
or State Loan

none
none

4085071 5801

$ 12,034,945

40470415802

1,724,4OO

nt of Transportation

State Transportation Trust Fund Loan
State Transportation Trust Fund Loan
Total

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule
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NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
STATE FI NANCIAL ASSISTANCE
June 30, 2016
NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance includes the
State grant activity of the Authority and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Chapter
10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule
may differ from amounts presented, or used in the preparation of the basic financial
statements.
NOTE B - CONTINGENCIES

These State projects are subject to financial and compliance audits by grantor agencies,
which, if instances of material noncompliance are found, may result in disallowed
expenditures, and affect the Authority's continued participation in specific projects. The
amount, in any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor agencies cannot be
determined at this time, although the Authority expects such amounts, if any to be immaterial.
NOTE C - SUBRECIPIENTS
The Authority did not provide federal awards or state financial assistance to subrecipients.
NOTE D - LOANS

As required by rule 27D-1.002 of the Florida Single Audit Act, all loan balances subject to the
Florida Single Audit Act are required to be presented on the Schedule of Expenditures of State
Financial Assistance. The Authority has expended all loan proceeds as of June 30, 2016. The
State Transportation Trust Fund loan proceeds were expanded during the year June 30, 2005
and years prior.
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OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
G OVERN MENT AU D ITI N G STAN DARD S
Distinguished Members of the Authority
Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing stanclards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Sfandards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority (the "Authority") as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Authority's basic flnancial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated December 12,2016.
lnternal Control Over Financial Reporting
ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Authority's internal control.

A deficiency in internal controlexists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,

or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or

a

combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Gompliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority's financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Sfandards.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Sfandards in considering the entity's
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Tampa, Florida
December 12,2016
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FOR EACH MAJOR STATE PROJECT AND REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED
GENERAL

Distinguished Members of the Authority
Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority

Report on Gompliance for Major State project

We have audited Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority's (the

"Authority")
Department
of
in
the
Florida
described
requirements
compliance with the types of compliance
and
material
could
have
a
direct
Supplementthat
Financial Services' State Projecß Compliance
effect on the Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority's major State project for the
year ended June 30, 2016. Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority's major State
project is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.
M a n agem enf

Management

's Respo

is

n s i b iI

ity

responsible

for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,

contracts, and grants applicable to its state project.

Auditor's Respon sib i I ity
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Tampa-Hillsborough
County Expressway Authority's major State projects based on our audit of the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor
General. Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major state project occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority's compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the
major state project. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of TampaHillsborough County Expressway Authority's compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major State Project

ln our opinion, Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on its major State project for the year ended June 30, 2016.
Report on lntemal Control Over Compliance
Management of Tampa Hillsborough County Expressway Authority is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. ln planning and performing our audit of compliance,
we considered Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority's internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each
major State project to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major State
project and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with Chapter
10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority's internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of state project on a timely basis. A material uyeakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a State project will not be prevented, or detected and corrected,
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over complianoe is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a State project that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, materialweaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Accordingly, this report is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Tampa, Florida
December 12,2016
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Forthe year ended June 30, 2016
Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditors' report issued

Unmodified

lnternal control over financial reporting
Material weakness(es) identified?
Sign ificant deficiency(ies) identified?

_yes
_yes

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

X
X

no

none reported

yes

x

no

yes

x

no

X

none reported

State Financial Assistance
lnternalcontrol over major state projects
Material weakness(es) identified?

_yes

Sign ificant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for
major state projects

Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with Chapter 10.557,
Rules of the Auditor General?

_yes

X

no

ldentification of major projects:

State
CSFA Number

Name of State Proiect

State Transportation Trust Fund Loan

NONE

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A
and type B state projects
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS. CONTINUED
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Section ll - Financial Statement Findings
No matters uere reported for the year ended June 30, 2016. Accordingly, a corrective action

plan is not required.

Section lll - State FinancialAssistance Findings and
Questioned Costs
No matters rrrære reported for the year ended June 30, 2016. Accordingly, a corrective action

plan is not required.

Section lV - Other lssues
a. Prior Year Findings
No summary schedule of prior audit findings is required because there rn¡ere no prior audit
findings related to state projects.

b. Management Letter
No findings or observations uere required to be reported in a management letter pursuant to
Section 10.554(1Xi), Rules of the Auditor General.
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MANAGEMENT LETTER BASED ON RULE 10.554(1Xi) OF THE
AUDITOR GENERAL OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA
Distinguished Members of the Authority
Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the financial statements of the Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority
(the "Authority"), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, and have issued our report
thereon dated December 12,2016.
Aud itor's Responsibility

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the

Auditor General.

Other Reports and Schedule
We have issued our lndependent Auditors' Report on lnternal Control Over Financial Reporting and
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards; lndependent Auditors' Report on Compliance for

Each Major State Project and Report on lnternal Control Over Compliance Required by
Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General; Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, and
lndependent Accountant's Report on Compliance with the Requirements of Section 218.415, Florida
Statutes on an examination conducted in accordance with AICPA Professional Standards, Section
601, regarding compliance requirements in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor
General. Disclosures in those reports and schedule, which are dated December 12,2016, should be
considered in conjunction with this management letter.
Prior Audit Findings
Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not
corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding
annual financial audit report. There were no prior year findings nor corrective actions disclosed in the
preceding audit report.
Official Title and LegalAuthority
Section 10.554(1Xi)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal
authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in
this management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The required
information is disclosed in the Notes to General Purpose Financial Statements (see Note A Organization and Reporting Entity), page 15.
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Financiatcondition

Sections 10.554(1X¡)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require that we apply
appropriate procedures and report the results of our determination as to whether or not the Authority
has met one or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and
identification of the specific condition(s) met. ln connection with our audit, we determined that the
Authority did not meet any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.

and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied
procedures.
lt is management's responsibility to monitor the
financial condition assessment
Authority's financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on
representations made by management and the review of financial information provided by same.
Pursuant

to Sections

10.554(f Xi)5.c.

Annual Financial Report
Sections 10.554(1Xi)s.b. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require that we report the
results of our determination as to whether the annual financial report for the Authority for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2016, filed with the Florida Department of Financial Services pursuant to
Section 218.32(1)(a), Florida Statutes, is in agreement with the annual financial audit report for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. ln connection with our audit, we determined that these two reports
were ín agreement.
Special District Component Units
Section 10.554(1Xi)s.d, Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not a
special district that is a component unit of a county, municipality, or special district, provided the
financial information necessary for proper reporting of the component unit, within the audited
financial statements of the county, municipality, or special district in accordance with Section
218.39(3Xb), Florida Statutes. ln connection with our audit, we determined that all special district
component units provided the necessary information for proper reporting in accordance with Section
218.39(3Xb), Florida Statutes. The Authority did not include any additionalspecialdistrict component
units for the year ended June 30, 2016, as this is not applicable.

Other Matters
Section 10.554(1X¡)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the management
letter any recommendations to improve financial management. ln connection with our audit, we did
not have any such recommendations.
Section 10.554(1Xi)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address noncompliance with
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have
occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which warrants
the attention of those charged with governance. ln connection with our audit, we did not have any
such findings.

Purpose of this Letter
Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida
Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, Members of the Authority's Board of
Directors, and applicable management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

Tampa, Florida
December 12,2016
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE
REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 218.415, FLORIDA STATUTES
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DEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT ON
COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF
SECTION 218.415. FLORIDA STATUTES

Distinguished Members of the Authority
Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority
policy
compliance with the requirements of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes during the year ended
June 30, 2016. Management is responsible for Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway
Authority's compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
Tampa-Hillsborough Coung Expressway Authority's compliance based on our examination.

We have examined Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority's investment

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the
American lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants, and, accordingly, included examining, on a
test basis, evidence about Tampa-Hillsborough Coun$ Expressway Authority's compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Our examination does not provide a legal determination on Tampa-Hillsborough County
Expressway Authority's compliance with specified requirements.

ln our opinion, Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority complied in all
respects, with the aforementioned requirements for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Tampa, Florida
December 12,2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' COMMUNICATION WITH
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
TAMPA.HI LLSBOROUGH COUNTY

EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY
June 30,2016
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To the Members of the Authority
Tam pa-H llsboro ug h County Expressway Authority
i

We have audited the financial statements of Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority,
for the year ended June 30, 2016 and issued our report thereon dated December 12,2016.
Professional standards require that we provide you with the following information about our
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards,
and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the AuditorGeneral, aswell as certain information related tothe
planned scope and timing of our audit. Professional standards also require that we provide you
with the following information related to our audit.

Our Responsibilities under U.S. Generallv Accepted Auditinq Standards, Government Auditino
Standards and Chapter 10.550. Rules of the Auditor General
As stated in our engagement letter dated June 17, 2016, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statements
prepared by management with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our audit of the financial
statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities.

ln planning and performing our audit, we considered Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway
Authority's internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide
assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. We also considered internal control
over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a state project
in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with
Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.

As part of

obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tampa-Hillsborough County
Expressway Authority's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit. Also in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of
the Auditor General, we examined, on a test basis, evidence about Tampa-Hillsborough County
Expressway Authority's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the
Florida Depaftment of Financial Services' "State Projects Compliance Supplement" applicable to
each of its state projects for the purpose of expressing an opinion on Tampa-Hillsborough
County Expressway Authority's compliance with those requirements. While our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion, it does not provide a legal determination on TampaHillsborough County Expressway Authority's compliance with those requirements.
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Planned Scope and Timinq of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to
management.
Siqnificant Audit Findinqs
Qualitative Aspecfs of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority are
described in note B to the financial statements. We noted no transactions entered into by the
Organization during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.
During the year ended June 30, 2016, GASB Statement 72, Fair Value Measurement and
Application was implemented. There are no significant transactions that have been recognized
in the financial statements in a different period than when the transaction occurred.
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management
and are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that
future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive
estimates affecting the financial statements were:

Management's estimate of the collectability of accounts receivable is based on prior
experience, historical collection trends and current and anticipated economic conditions.
We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the valuation estimate in
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.
Management's estimate of the useful life of capital assets is based on historical
experience, physical condition and external factors affecting future utility. We evaluated
the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimated useful life in determining
that the net book value of capital assets are reasonable in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.
Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
financial statement users. Significant disclosures were included in Note E - Long-term Debt.
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Pe¡forming the Audit

We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.
Corrected and

U ncorrected

Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level
of management. None were noted during the audit process.
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Di sag ree m e nts with M a n age m ent

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting,
or auditing matter that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report. We
are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.
M an age m

e

nt Re pre se ntation s

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in

the

management representation letter dated December 12, 2016.
Management Consultations with Other lndependent Auditors

ln some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a second opinion on certain situations. lf a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the organization's financial statements or a
determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, the
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with
other accountants.
Other Audit Findings or /ssues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Tampa Hillsborough
County Expressway Authority's auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal
course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.
Other Matters

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made
certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the
information to determine that the information complies with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information
is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared
and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.
This information is intended solely for the use of the Members of the Authority and management
of Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority and is not intended to be and should not
be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Tampa, Florida
December 12,2016
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(Preliminary and Unaudited)
For Period 07 /oL/I6 - r0ßL/L6
December L2,2OL6

Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
As ofOctober 31,,2016

Year-to-Date
Actual
Toll revenuesl
Operating expenses
Toll 0perations
Roadway Operations
Maintenance
Renewal & Replacement

Marketing
Other Expenses
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
General and administrative expenses
Payroll Expense
Outside Services
Occupancy and Office Expense
Total general and administrative expenses
Income from Operations

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Investment Income
Net (decrease) increase
in the fair va-lue of investments
MisceÌlaneous (expense) revenue

Vear-to-Date
Budget
28,133,333

1,233,030

L,455,869
77B,Sr9

(222,83e)

84.70/o

(47,1s6)

93.4o/o

7,111,716
5,012,883
193,333

(222,70e)
(4,753,464)
(31,e26)

80.0%

394,452
8.886.772

l0'l
(5.278,094)

100.00/n

3.608.679

865,547
268,622

978,390
365,763

(1,72,84e)

r52,598

162.423

7,286.76I

1,506,577

(9.826)
(2L9.A16)

23.485.1,02

17,739.984

5.745,L78

'J,32.40/o

2BB,6t2

20L,279

87,333

143.40/o

677,363
889,006

259,4r9
76L,40B
394.452

Income before contributed capital

77,508,573

11,546,t37

535,167

1,00.90/o

5.20/o

83.5%

40.60/o

88.50/o
73.4o/o
94.Oo/o

85.4o/¡

{68,64s)

(6.731.662)
(5.976.529\

Net postion at beginning of year

(97,741)

(68,64s)

Interest expense
Total non-operating revenues (expenses]

Increase in net position

247,208

Year-to-Date
o/o Variance

28,380,547

315,551
(6.710.676)
(6.193.847)

Contributed Capital
CV Pilot Contract
Total contributed capital

Yeãr-to-Date
Variance

7,654,707
7.654.101

2I9,6L6
(20,986)

769.60/o
1,00.3o/o

21,7,318

96.50/o

5,962,436

157.60/o

1,654,101
1,654,101

19,162,674

17,546,737

267,674,699

26r,674,699

280.837,373
273.220.836
Net position month-to-date
revenue has not been adjusted Íor allowance Íor doubtful øccounts; includes fees

7,676,537

766.0o/o

7,61,6,537

'J,02.80/o

PRDLIIIIII|ARY UIìTAI'DITED

TAMPA HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY
CAPITAL PROJECTS
As of OctoberSL,2OL6

Total
Budget

Budget
Variance

Expenditures

S

905,417

46,BBB

858,529

Meridian Ultimate

1,,2!3,897

271,L36

942,761,

Selmon East

2,277,600

38,019

2,239,58L

Selmon Greenway - Phase II & III

L,830,462

320,132

l-,510,330

1_0,445,638

4,206,454

6,239,184

Capacity Projects

Selmon West Extension

$

Total System Proiects
ITS and

t6,673,0L4

$

4,982,629

$

11,790,385

Toll

ITS Equipment

$

5,047,080

$

968,918

$

4,078,L62

Electronic Toll Collection System Capital Costs

$

1,567,802

$

97,907

$

t,469,895

Centralized Customer Service System

$

3,774,735

$

38,113

$

3,736,622

1,104,938

$

9,284,679

26,62L

$

2,245,733

$

Total Toll Operations - Capital
Expressway Capita

$

mprovements

Signs

$

Lighting Upgrades
Underpass Improvements

Total Expressway Capital Improvements

10,389,617

2,272,354

$

$

224,573

$

$

224,573

$

647,165

$

$

647,t65

3,L44,092

$

$

3,117,47L

$

26,62L

Page L
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TAMPA HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY
CAPITAL PROJECTS
As of October3L,2OL6

Total

Planning, Development, Systems Analysis, Misc. Projects
Strategic PIan

s

Total Planning & Development
TMC Capital

-

661,803

14I,469

520,334

L,711.,052

926,96r

784,09L

2,372,855

$

1,068,430

$

L,304,425

Iml
5L7,607

Capital Improvements
TMC

Budget
Variance

Expenditures

Budget

IT Projects/Furniture & Fixtures (over $5,000)

Total TMC Capital Improvements

358,687

1,58,920

447,256

447,256
$

964,863

$

t58,920

$

805,943

Automated Vehicles/Connected Vehicles

9,279,899

3,308,085

5,97L,814

Bus Toll Lanes Projects

1,,3L7,0L5

1,109,890

207,r25

Non-Greenway Facilities

1L5,533

MacDill Gate Project

678,400

776,899

501,501

GIS Systemwide Mapping Project

485,036

1,6,379

468,657

Total Miscellaneous Proiects

Total Capital Proiects
Contingency Balance

1"L5,533

$

11,875,883

$

4,6LL,253

$

7,264,630

$
$

45,420,324

$

t1,852,79L

$

33,567,533

4,809,969
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Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority
Cash and Investments
As ofoctober 31, 2016
Cash or Investment

Description

Depository
o

t

$

OM&A Checking

Cash
Cash

$

339
2,156,566

Administrative Reserve
Operation and Maintenance Reserve

Investment
Investment

$

r,428,I71

Cash on Hand

Petty Cash-Safe
SunTrust Bank
State Treasurer
SunTrust Robinson Humphrey
Subtotal

tn
Can
be used as
Renewal & Replacement Fund2,3

Regions Bank

Balance

Master
Investment

$

1..042.425

$

4,627,500

$

29,862,458

$

29,862,458

$

73,975,826
1,397,046
89,198
75,456,070

Series 207

($10m reserve - Series 2012 bondfunds)

Subtotal
Svstem
Regions Bank

SunTrust Bank
SunTrust Bank
Subtotal
SunTrust Bank
Regions Bank
Regions Bank
Regions Bank
Regions Bank
Regions Bank
Subtotal
SunTrust Bank
State Treasurer
SunTrust Robinson Humphrey
Subtotal
Total Cash and Investments

Bonds

only be used as
System Project Fund
Work Program Checking
CV Pilot Contract Checking
be used as
Surplus Account Checking
Revenue Fund2
OM&A Reserve Fund3
Debt Service Payment Fund3
Debt Service Reserve Fund3
General Reserve Fund2

IN

2072 Master
Investment
Cash
Cash

Master

$
$
$

Resolution

Cash

Investment
Investment
Investment
Investment
Investment

$

$
$
$

$
$

Unrestricted Cash
Unrestricted Funds
Unrestricted Funds

Cash

$

Investment
Investment

$

'THESE FUNDS ARE RESTRICTED OR ENCUMBERED AND CAN ONLY BE USED FOR ITS INTENDED PURPOSE
zToil Revenuefunded
3

$

AII or part of the reserve funded with Series 2072 bond funds

$
$

$

1,100
4,270,782
\2,459,827
8,574,929
37,097,176
856,744
57,799,953
1,518,186
3,195,034
6,373,939
77,027,759
778,773,739

Tampa Hillsborough County Expressway Authority
Revenue
As of October 3L,2OL6
Toll Revenuel

$

28,380,54L

Leases:

343,750
66,842
58,350
28,034
1,600
2,800

ConAgra - Lease of Railroad Track
Hillsborough County School Board - Parking Lease
City of Tampa - Parking Leases
USF Health Professions Conf Corp. - Parking Leases
A Few Tampa Properities - Parking Lease
Smokehouse on Platt - ROW Lease
International Ship - Parking Lease
Sprint - Nextel - Utilities ROW Lease
Willow & Platt Parking Lease
|acobs Real Estate Services -ROW Lease
TMC First Floor Lease
CV Pilot Contract
Interest on Checking & Investment Accounts

Total Revenue
Revenue has not been adjusted

7,782
32,009
'J.,654,107
288,612
$

for

Do

30,858,421

TAMPA HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY
REGIONS BANK (FISCAL AGENT) . FLOW OF FUNDS
As of October3L,2OL6
Balance July 7, 2076
Short Term & Fixed Investments

t55,606,748

RECEIPTS

26,62L,295

Tolls

381_,182

Miscellaneous Revenue
Interest on Long Term Investments
Gain on Sale of Investments
on Investments

DISBURSEMENTS
Payments
Lien Bond
of Administration, Operations & Maintenance

(4,404)
400
77
$

1.82,860 798

$

13,401,06s
4,444,0L3
4,000,000

of Work Program

Balance October 3 7, 2 0 76
Short Term & Fixed Investments

161,07 720
$

782,860,798

TAMPA-HILLSBOROUGH

EXPR
AUTHORITY

Traffic and Revenue (unauditedf
For Perio d, 07 | OL I 16 - IO l3I I L6
December L2r 2o-16

Tampa Hillsborough County Expressway Authority

'

Traffic (October 20X6)

FY20t7

Video

FY2016

Total

SunPass

July

L,O52,452

3,5L8,1"58

August

1,073,726

3,805,777

September

7,039,752

3,590,690

October

1,03t,436

Total Traffic

4,L97,366

3,717,300
74,637,923

Video

4,570,610
4,879,503

1,,056,730

4,630,442
4,749,736
18,829,289

999,1.40

3,371,941
3,499,956

!,003,427

o/o

Total

SunPass

4,428,67L

3.tt%

4,503,383

7.71%

4,4g6,grg

3.10%

1,,067,641

3,487,779
3,687,063

4,754,704

-o.13%

4,126,939

t4,046,740

!8,t73,679

3.48%

Tampa Hillsborough County Expressway Authority

Revenue (October2016)
FY2OL7

I

July

Videor

s

August

5

September
October

$

Total Revenue

s

s

Avg Transoct¡on

FY2016

Total

SunPass

1,737,329
7,806,291
1,735,426
1,704,653
6,9g3,6gg

Videol

s

6,809,884

5

5,072,556
5,459,379

s

s

5,146,734

s

5,333,491

s
s

2t,ot2,159

5

7,265,659
6,992,760
7,038,143
27,995,846

$

s

1.66

L.44

s

7,696,O47

s

s

t,62t,og7
t,6LL,!37

s

$

1,756,574
6,684,855

s

s

1.49

o/o

Total

SunPass

s

4,717,720
4,878,425
4,847,430

s

5,148,501

s

6,905,075

5

t9,592,077

5

26,216,932

1.62

s

6,413,767

5.82%

s

6,499,522

1054%

s

6,458,569

6.15%
7.89%
6.t4o/o

1.39

1.45

lndicoted Revenue

20t6l

Projected Revenue

Add'l Revenue

Revenue

Video lndicated2

Projected Revenue
July

s

August
September
October
Total

s

SunPass Actual

6,676,6t5

s

1,737,329

s

6,789,25O

s

L,806,28t

s

6,764,429

s

7,L68,t39

s

1,735,426
1,704,653
e,ggg,oga

27,398,433

$

5,072,556
5,459,379

Total
5

s

s
s

5,746,734

s

5,333,491

5

s

2L,OL2,t5g

S

6,g0g,gg4
7,265,659
6,882,L60
7,038,143
27,99s,846

tProjected revenue estîmøted
$84,400,000; wil! be revised
2Has not been ødjusted

17/23/20t6

for øllowonce for doubtful accounts

Unaudited

Video Fees Actual

o/o

1.96%

704,451

6.56%

tr1,483

1.77%

r24,358

-L.85%

2.t3%

45,274

s

384,566

V. C.
Communications
Sue Chrzan

V. D.
Toll Operations
Rafael Hernandez

VI. A.
Executive Director Report
Joe Waggoner

Contract Close-Out Report ~ October 2016
Contractor

Contract
Number

Term

Deliverable

Board
Approved
Budget

Modification
to Budget

F-00411

11/01/11
to
10/31/16

Traffic & Revenue
Consultant

Task orders
as needed

Not
Applicable

$532,999.

University of
South Florida

USF

10/01/15
To
10/31/16

Economic Contribution
of THEA to Hillsborough
County’s Economy –
2015 Update

$79,500.

None

$79,419.

University of
South Florida

USF

10/01/15
To
10/31/16

Assessing the Economic
and Business Impacts of
the Proposed “Western
Selmon Extension Study
Update”

$34,613.

None

$34,613.

CDM Smith

Per fiscal
year budget

Total
Expenditure

CONTRACT RENEWAL
and
EXPIRATION REPORT
(> $30,000)
Project
Manager

David May

David May

Consultant,
Contractor or
Vendor Name

A-Stellar Property
Management

Broadspectrum
formerly
Transfield
Services/ VMS

SBE
Firm

Description of
Services

Landscaping &
Yes Hardscape
Maintenance
Maintenance
Management for
No
THEA Roadways &
Bridges

Rafael
Hernandez

Qfree America

Lynne Paul

Rivero Gordimer &
Yes Financial Audit
Associates

Rafael
Hernandez

Transcore

No

Toll & Operations
Maintenance

Image Concentrator
Integration ~
Operation &
No
Maintenance
Support for Toll
Operations

Report for the month of: December 2016

Bid
Method

Contract
Effective
Date

Original
Term of
Contract
(Years)

Renewal
Options

Bid/
Renew

Expiration
Date of Full
Contract
Term

$742,256

RFQ

07/01/15

2 years

None

Bid

06/30/17

$13,052,884

RFQ

01/08/09

4.5 years
+ 4 years
renewal

None

Bid

07/07/17

$561,813

Sole
Source

11/13/12

4.5 years

By mutual
agreement

Renew

06/30/17

$45,000

RFQ

6/8/12

3 years
+ 2 years
renewal

None

Bid

06/30/17

$1,029,434

GCP

4 years

None

N/A

6/13/2017

Contract
Amount

1/14/2013

VI. B.
General Counsel Report
Patrick Maguire, Esq.

VI. C.
Chair Report
Vincent Cassidy, Chair

Schedule

Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority
Meeting Schedule
2017
1/09/17
1/23/17

January
Committees as a Whole
Board Meeting

1:30 p.m.
1:30 p.m.

2/13/17
2/27/17

February
Committees as Whole
Board Meeting

1:30 p.m.
1:30 p.m.

3/13/17
3/27/17

March
Committees as Whole
Board Meeting

1:30 p.m.
1:30 p.m.

4/10/17
4/24/17

April
Committees as Whole
Board Meeting

1:30 p.m.
1:30 p.m.

5/08/17
5/22/17

May
Committees as Whole
Board Meeting

1:30 p.m.
1:30 p.m.

6/12/17
6/26/17

June
Committees as Whole
Board Meeting

1:30 p.m.
1:30 p.m.

7/10/17
7/24/17

July
Committees as Whole
Board Meeting

1:30 p.m.
1:30 p.m.

August

8/14/17
8/28/17

Committees as a Whole
Board Meeting

1:30 p.m.
1:30 p.m.

9/11/17
9/25/17

September
Committees as Whole
Board Meeting

1:30 p.m.
1:30 p.m.

10/16/17
10/23/17

October
Committees as a Whole
Board Meeting

1:30 p.m.
1:30 p.m.

11/06/17
11/13/17

November
Committees as Whole
Board Meeting

1:30 p.m.
1:30 p.m.

12/04/17
12/11/17

December
Committees as Whole
Board Meeting

1:30 p.m.
1:30 p.m.

Note: Meetings of Committees as Whole will be held in the Expressway’s 3rd floor conference room.
Monthly Board meetings will be held in the Expressway’s 1st floor Board room.

